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Corac Group plc is a leading engineering
company in energy and environmental
technologies.
The focus is on building a sustainable group of businesses
through acquisition, consolidation and partnership, whilst
driving organic growth and value from an expanding portfolio
of patented technologies.
Group companies are active in the management and control
of energy systems, air, other gases and fluids. They have a
balanced technology development, engineering and
manufacturing capability across three locations, all in the UK.
Their goal is to lead the world in their chosen technologies and
be first to market with innovative systems that become
standards for their customers and partners. They produce
valuable solutions for government and industrial users whilst
creating value for Group investors and other stakeholders.

www.corac.co.uk
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Group Overview

Atmosphere Control
International (ACI)
Corac Energy
Technologies (CET)
Hunt Graham (HG)

ACI is a specialist in the miniaturising
of chemical processes for rugged
environments.
The company provides air purification
equipment for submarines including
oxygen/hydrogen generation and
purification, patented systems for the
removal of smoke and acid gases,
plus air handling and distribution
systems.
Overall applications include:
• Combined Oxygen Generation
Systems (COGS)
• Carbon dioxide scrubbers, C0/H2
oxidisers and refrigerant removal
• A range of hydrogen purifiers for
industrial use
ACI has supplied air purification
equipment and provides long term
maintenance support to all of the
Royal Navy’s nuclear and conventional
submarine fleets and supports other
programmes in France, Spain, and
several Asian fleets.

CET designs and delivers technologies
in advanced turbomachinery and was
the first to use gas bearings for high
speed, compact, oil-free compressors.
The company is highly innovative,
with an IP portfolio of 45 patents
worldwide and eight European design
registrations.
The CET smart turbo compressor
solutions run at high speed in
frictionless bearings and are aimed
at high value applications where size,
weight and maintenance stops are
minimised.
CET compression technologies are
applied in:
• Natural gas production at the wellhead for energy operators on both
land wells and offshore platforms
• Downhole Gas Compression (DGC)
for declining gas wells
• Industrial waste heat recovery and
other renewable energy systems
CET has active projects in progress in
the United States, Italy, Saudi Arabia
and the UK.

www.corac.co.uk

Hunt Graham is a specialist
manufacturer of heat exchange
equipment used in the cooling and
heating of large scale industrial
processes.
The company supports the full lifecycle
through original equipment supply,
refurbishment, spares and integrated
support agreements. Hunt Graham
works with end users in oil and gas,
chemical processing, power generation,
food and pharmaceutical production.
From an integrated design and
production facility in the UK, the
company produces:
• Shell and tube exchangers for
sealed system industrial processes
• Extended surface exchangers for
atmospheric heating and cooling
• Vacuum condenser packages
Hunt Graham provides long term
support to thermal engineering
solutions for five of the seven downstream refineries in the UK and supplies
systems to customers in Europe,
North Africa and the Middle East.

Highlights
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Operational

Financial

Group

Group revenue by sector
50% Defence

• Acquired two companies from Wellman
Group and managed transition of three
operating companies into the Group

14% Industrial
36% Energy

• Opened new Technology Centre in Slough
• Continuing investment in business processes
to meet quality standards and business
growth needs
ACI
• Delivered submarine systems to Navantia for
the Spanish navy
• Secured a multi-million pound project with
DCNS for the French Navy’s Barracuda
class programme

• Group revenue of £15.3m (2011: £0.3m)
• Group revenue on a pro forma2 basis,
including the full year revenue for the
acquired business was £19.3m
• Total R&D4 spend of £3.2m (2011: £3.4m)

• Extended a worldwide in-service
maintenance and support contract for the
UK submarine programme

• Loss before tax of £6.1m (2011: loss before
tax of £5.7m)

CET

• Adjusted Group EBITDA3 loss on a pro
forma2 basis was £3.9m

• Continued to grow the value of intellectual
property with recognition from major
customers in significant unit sale enquiries
• Completed factory and flowloop testing of
the first deployable DGC and delivered to
customer for field trials
• Significant new contracts signed for new
applications to develop industrial waste
energy recovery systems
HG
• Delivered a technically challenging multiple
heat exchanger project for a major oil and
gas customer
• Completed a high volume refurbishment
programme at one of the largest refineries in
the UK

• Adjusted Group EBITDA3 loss of £4.1m
(2011: loss £5.2m)

• £6.7m cash at year end (2011: £15.3m)
• Group year end order book stood at £14.4m
(2011: £0.7m) with a significant pipeline of
qualified potential sales opportunities.
Notes
1 EBIDTA is defined as operating profit adjusted to add back depreciation of
property, plant and equipment and amortisation of acquired intangible assets.
2 The directors have provided the pro forma financial information to give
an indication of performance as though the acquisitions of ACI and HG
had occurred on 1 January 2012. The pro forma financial information is
based on the unaudited management accounts of both ACI and HG for
the period from 1 January 2012 to 4 April 2012, aggregated with the
trading results of the Group for the nine month period ended 31 December
2012, which include the trading results of ACI and HG for the period of
5 April 2012 to 31 December 2012. The aggregated financial information
is then further adjusted to eliminate certain exceptional items that do
not relate to underlying trading contained in the accounts of both ACI
and HG for the period for 1 January 2012 to 4 April 2012.
3 Adjusted EBITDA is defined as operating profit adjusted to add back
depreciation of property, plant and equipment, amortisation of acquired
intangible assets and any other acquisition related charges, share
based payment charges and exceptional items. Exceptional items are
those items believed to be exceptional in nature by virtue of their size
and or incidence, and in the current period comprise costs associated
with the acquisitions of ACI and HG on 5 April 2012 and associated
equity fundraising on 2 April 2012.
4 Total R&D spend includes cost of sales within CET.

www.corac.co.uk

Executive Chairman’s
Statement
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Delivering our strategy to invest in
technology and build creative engineering
solutions with partners in high-value
sectors.
This has been a year of great achievement and transformation
for Corac. We have expanded the Group through successful
acquisition and opened a new purpose-designed facility
to support our engineering and delivery activities. We have
enhanced the value of the Group by adding cash earnings,
investing in our intellectual property and commercialising
our technologies.

Group order book by sector
66% Defence
12% Industrial
22% Energy

The significant effort made in transforming the Group over
the past 12 months, turning Corac into a balanced solution
delivery organisation, has been reflected in the strength
and quality of a growing pipeline of opportunities across
all three businesses. I believe that we are now very well
positioned to embark upon our next phase of business
growth towards sustainable revenues and profits.
We have continued to focus on customer solution
programmes based upon proven technologies. We are
pleased to see growing interest in our applications from
established relationships in energy, defence and petrochemicals and interesting new challenges in areas such as
energy recovery. Within these programmes we achieved
a significant milestone when a factory tested DGC was
accepted for delivery by our American partner for trials in
their gas field.

Evolving Strategy
Last year I spoke of our strategy to invest in and focus on
technology programmes to bring commercially valuable
propositions to market. Through the year we have expanded
our commercial engagements through a broader portfolio
of core technologies. This was aided by the mid-year
acquisitions which position us well to support our partners’
energy and environmental challenges.
Our strategy is to grow the Group significantly by
supplying engineered solutions that add value both for us
and our customers. As a trusted innovator and provider of
specialised systems based on our proprietary core
technologies, we will maintain a position closely aligned
with the needs of our markets.

Photo courtesy of GL Noble Denton

Players in the markets in which we operate make large
investments in capital equipment and face their own
performance and efficiency challenges. We have identified
opportunities for our high value contributions to their
programmes, and once established with them we see
opportunities for repeat sales and long term maintenance
agreements.

DGC system testing at Spadeadam

www.corac.co.uk

The Board will continue to consider partnership and
acquisition opportunities to enhance and broaden the
Group’s service offerings, extend its geographic reach and
take the Group into new markets such as aviation, space
or renewable energy where there is potential demand for its
technologies.
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Executive Chairman’s Statement

Successful Acquisitions
We were pleased to announce on 5 April 2012 that we had
acquired Wellman Defence Limited and Wellman Hunt
Graham Limited for a cash consideration of £10.9 million
from the Wellman Group. The two companies have since
been renamed as Atmosphere Control International Limited
and Hunt Graham Limited, and are a key part of our
strategy to broaden our technical and market proposition
and add revenue and profit to support long term investment
in technology development.
The acquired companies give us major defence industry
clients and extend our reach in oil and gas and process
industries which is vital in extending our market presence
and our geographic footprint. They also open opportunities
to cross-sell technology solutions across the Group.
Performance
I am pleased to report that the Group’s results are ahead
of expectations. Adjusted Group EBITDA loss (before share
based payment and exceptional items) was reduced to
£4.1m (2011: loss £5.2m). This is the net effect of positive
contributions from ACI and HG alongside continued
development spending and investment in the Group.
The Group had £6.7m net cash at year end (2011: £15.3m)
and has built a Group order book of £14.4m (2011: £0.7m),
benefitting in particular from ACI’s strong long term order
book. Our focus on business development around a wider
portfolio of engineering propositions has provided us with
a significant pipeline of qualified potential sales opportunities.
Solutions and Applications
I believe we now have a much clearer, simpler and more
compelling set of commercial propositions based upon the
core solution components that Corac companies can call
upon to help our clients. These can be summarised as:
• A clean gas business based upon oxygen generation,
gas cleansing and contaminant removal (ACI)
• A rotating machines business that combines advanced
motors, contactless bearings, motor drive systems,
sensors and advanced aerodynamics (CET)
• A thermal engineering business with great experience
in heat exchangers, condensers, design and through life
support (HG)
The Group business development plan is to mobilise all of
these as technology components and to work with
customers on their operational problems and to offer
solutions that draw upon the full breadth of the Group’s
capability. The first evidence of this has been seen with the
inclusion of shell and tube heat exchange designs in a
CET compression system.
Widening Geographic Footprint
The expanded Group enjoys a wider geographic footprint
through its customers and partners and this gives us great
opportunities to engage with new international customers.
www.corac.co.uk

Geography of Sales
United Kingdom
18% Export

Rest of EU
North America
Asia
Middle East
Rest of the World

Multiple propositions for thermal engineering,
turbomachinery, compression and defence applications
have recently been presented during business development
visits to the United States, Europe and the Middle East.
Going forward, I intend for the geographies to receive
increasing emphasis, as we move to a more holistic
technology proposition based upon our Group-wide
capabilities.
Broadening Market Focus
The Group’s market focus has significantly broadened
following the acquisition of ACI and Hunt Graham to be in
energy, industrial turbomachinery and defence. We have
strengthened the senior business development team with
programme experience in these areas to take advantage of
new business opportunities.
Creative use of our technology elements has also opened
up opportunities in adjacent markets such as power
generation and the nuclear build programme. We will
continue to respond to user problems in new arenas where
our technologies can provide positive outcomes.
This encourages me to believe that there is significant room
for growth in each of our traditional markets, and also in the
relevance of Corac’s miniaturised technologies operating in
harsh environments. This leads us to opportunities in other
markets such as aerospace, renewable energy or carbon
management, where the need for compact, efficient and
innovative engineering is driving investment.
Corporate Development
Corporate development activity around strategic partnerships,
potential mergers and acquisitions continues to be, and
will remain, an important part of our growth strategy.
We intend to expand our partnerships, such as that already
established with Baker Hughes, with a focus on marketing,
sales, technology development and delivery.
We will look to make complementary acquisitions where
established technologies enhance our existing business and
will also consider opportunities for the Group to support
under achieving or under valued technology companies
and transform them for future success.
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Executive Chairman’s Statement

Talented People

Outlook

Corac depends on the talent and commitment of its people
and I would again like to thank all our staff for their part in
working through the changes and delivering the progress
made this year.

A stronger Group with a collection of mature and maturing
technologies and enhanced routes to market is yielding
increasing interest from ever wider markets. Our immediate
focus will be to:

We now have a very strong management team with a
breadth of experience supporting the executive directors
which enables the business to succeed whilst at the
same time allowing the executive directors to focus on the
continuing development and growth of the Group.

• Build on the strength of the capital expenditure in the
markets we supply

Corac currently employs 165 staff, with a comparatively
lean overhead and high proportion of technical and delivery
staff. We have continued to build teams around the high
level appointments of previous years, through leadership
development from within, strategic external recruitment
and careful use of associates and contractors to manage
peaks of activity.
We have also continued our commitment to apprenticeships,
with six young people currently engaged across the Group.
Our goal is to make Corac a place where talent can thrive
and be recognised, where we share the excitement and
rewards of what we and our customers achieve and we
enjoy the route that takes us there.

• Apply Group resources to invest in technology evolution
and staff capability
• Maintain strong technical and commercial relationships
with our key customers and partners
• Offer engineering propositions that expoit our mature
and emerging technologies
Investment is growing in energy and environment markets
and Corac’s technologies are well placed to meet this
demand.
We will continue to deliver high value propositions to our
customers with increasingly positive results from these in
2013. We start the year with a strong order book and
pipeline, and our strategy will continue to reduce losses
further through 2013 and 2014 and become a business
delivering strong margins and generating shareholder
value.
On this basis I have great confidence in the prospects for
the Group going forwards.

Corac is a dynamic and rewarding place
to work. We apply unique technologies to
interesting challenges with a focus on
personal and team performance.

www.corac.co.uk
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Case Study
Industry specific expertise

Submarine programmes are long
running activities, yet technology is
constantly advancing. ACI is constantly
tracking emerging technologies in
chemical engineering and control
systems and matching these with the
operational needs of the submarine
life support system.
To produce Oxygen for the crew to
breathe for extended periods, the
equipment must safely produce the
volume of oxygen required and must
fit into a very compact space. It must
also satisfy strict demands on noise,
vibration and electrical and magnetic
compatibility, meet environmental and
material standards and withstand high
shock loads in three dimensions.

Five years ago, ACI demonstrated to
partners in both the UK and French
submarine programmes a system that
was much simpler, smaller, lighter and
cheaper than the previous generation
devices.
A new cell stack design, which
eliminated the Hydrogen compressor
(previously required to discharge
the unwanted Hydrogen production
outside the submarine) allowed a
significant reduction in the noise and
vibration signature of the plant.
Advances in control systems allowed
much smaller electrical enclosures to
be designed, which released sufficient
space to allow the integration of a
Gas Management Plant. This system
processes unwanted hydrogen into
a non detectable liquid product. This
combined system was christened
COGS.

www.corac.co.uk

ACI was awarded a build and test
contract for two units for ASTUTE
Boat 4, followed by a contract for the
oxygen production system on
Barracuda Class submarines by
DCNS and a further 8 units (4 Boat
contract) was received for the ASTUTE
and VANGUARD programmes.
In 2012 the first COGS units began
their sea trials with the Royal Navy
and expect to demonstrate compliance
with atmosphere control specifications
during 2013. A further two oxygen
generation systems were ordered by
DCNS for the Barracuda contract for
delivery in 2015 and 2017
COGS has also been selected for the
Vanguard replacement, 4 boats with
1st delivery circa 2023.
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Case Study
Collaborative development

Corac Energy Technologies has an
extensive understanding of gas well
dynamics and conditions. This connects
with a set of advanced and protected
high speed motor and turbomachinery
technologies to provide engneeredfor-purpose compression solutions to
oil and gas field operators.
The original technology development
programme for downhole compression
was a technically challenging
application that is now nearing field
deployment. Space, temperature,
pressure and gas composition form a
particularly difficult combination in
which to operate high speed machinery.

CET’s strategy is to diversify the
applications and find other areas
where some of the challenges can be
reduced or eliminated. Core technology
elements have been identified and
Corac began to explore their
application with oil and gas operators.
Discussions with Saudi Aramco
identified a potential deployment at
the wellhead which removed some of
the constraints whilst working in
completely different well and flow
conditions. This quickly showed that
simply applying a DGC at the surface
would not be the best approach.
With some of the constraints removed,
a feasibility study explored options for
handling high fluid levels at relatively
high gas flow rates and packaging the
system in a way suitable for the local
environment.

www.corac.co.uk

The collaborative approach with
Aramco concluded that proven
technology elements could be
combined with innovations in areas
such as liquid separation to produce
an integrated system. Make or buy
analyses are typically carried out for
some segments where established
technology solutions already exist.
This can remove technical and
commercial risk form the overall
programme and exploits mature
technology wherever it is available.
The outcome is a collaborative
approach with a partner for a system
which is fit for purpose and meets
the specific needs of the field, based
upon proven technology segments.
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Case Study
Through-life support

Hunt Graham supports the full
lifecycle of specialist heat exchange
equipment in a wide range of
industrial applications.
They have had a long standing
involvement in the nuclear power
sector with a presence on several
UK sites to supply replacement heat
exchangers.
Part of their support service is to
maintain extensive trading records
and an archive system through which
the original units supplied in the early
1980s were identified even though
the original system manufacturers
no longer exist and therefore direct
records are unavailable.

Hunt Graham undertook a task to
identify potential contracts and then
verify the application.
Previously the sites had resorted to
removing units to reverse engineer
the supply. This meant that there were
extended periods without the benefit
of operational units, and the standard
of these replacements were also
contributors to a limited lifespan.
Hunt Graham replacements have
since been produced to the original
specifications and satisfactorily
installed. So far a total of 21 units
have been supplied since mid 2011
with a replacement requirement
continuing.

www.corac.co.uk

Chief Financial
Officer’s Report
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Results ahead of expectations.
A transformational year with continuing
investment to prepare the Group for
success.
Corac was transformed through the acquisition of Atmosphere
Control International Limited and Hunt Graham Limited on
5 April 2012. This changed the Group’s income statement
through the introduction of significant revenues and operating
profits. The mid-year acquisition makes comparisons to the
prior year as separate businesses not meaningful.
Corac uses adjusted EBITDA figures as a key performance
measure in addition to those reported under International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The directors
believe that these are more representative of underlying
performance. Adjusted EBITDA figures are used unless
otherwise stated and they exclude amortisation of acquired
intangible assets and any other acquisition related charges,
share based payments and exceptional items, as set out in
note 3 to the accounts.
The acquisition of ACI and HG was completed on 5 April
2012 for a cash consideration of £10.9m, with net cash of
£6.3m raised from the placing of shares on 2 April 2012.
Group Financial Performance
Group revenues of £15.3m (2011: £0.3m) arose predominantly
from the two acquired businesses which totalled £15.1m in
the period post acquisition. The pro forma revenues for ACI
and HG were £19.1m which are in line with the baseline
annual expectations at the time of the purchase and are
covered in more detail in the operational review.
The Group continues to invest in R&D at a level in line with
2011 at a total of £3.2m (2011: £3.4m) all of which was
invested in the core technologies within the CET business.
Re-scheduling of expenditure on individual development
projects means this is lower than anticipated at the start of
the year. The Board is committed to continued investment
in technology, with R&D spend in CET and additional
investment in ACI to generate future commercial revenues.
Administration costs of £6.6m (2011: £2.9m) includes £0.8m
arising from the two acquired businesses and £0.4m of
incremental depreciation charges relating to the 2011
investment in the new Technology Centre in Slough. £1.0m
exceptional costs were incurred as a result of the acquisition
(due diligence, advisor and broker fees) together with
£0.6m of intangible asset amortisation charges. The
remaining additional spend relates to re-organisation costs
and investment in central senior management, gearing
up in line with the strategy to deliver growth through the
enlarged Group.
www.corac.co.uk

Adjusted EBITDA operating losses of £4.1m (2011: £5.2m)
were lower than expectations due to phasing of positive
adjusted EBITDA contributed post-acquisition from ACI
and HG, and re-scheduling of R&D investment at CET.
The pro forma adjusted EBITDA from the two acquisitions
generated £2.6m, in line with full year expectations. The
statutory operating loss before tax for the year was £6.1m
(2011: £5.7m).
Group Financial Position
R&D tax credits for the Group relate to the reclaim for
investment made within CET. The Group has claimed
£0.7m (2011: £0.7m) in line with last year linked to a similar
level of R&D investment, discussed in more detail within
the CET operations report.
Corac has utilised tax losses across the enlarged group to
offset taxable profits within the two acquired subsidiaries
within the post acquisition trading period and has therefore
not incurred a tax charge in the period.
At year end, the Group order book stood at £14.4m. £9.6m,
which is equivalent to approximately half of the Groups
2012 pro forma revenues, relates to orders that are expected
to be completed in 2013. Within ACI and CET, the longer
term nature of the contracts and development projects
means that the balance of orders will be completed over
several years.
The year-end cash together with the support of the future
cash generated by ACI and HG provides the Group with
adequate funds to continue to invest in the CET business
and support the overall Group’s operations as planned.
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Net cash used in operating activities was £4.1m (2011:
£5.1m) and broadly in line with last year after taking into
account £1.0m exceptional acquisition expenses in the
year and £1.9m cash inflow from operating activities of the
two acquired subsidiaries. Cash at year end totalled £6.7m
(2011: £15.3m) the movement explained in part by the net
cash used in operating activities alongside the net balance
of cash used to support the acquisition and the associated
equity fundraising.
In line with the Group’s current strategy, no dividend has
been declared.
Group Operations Review
Since the acquisition, the three businesses run
autonomously, with support from a small Group team,
particularly in cross-selling between the companies with
shared account planning and joint proposition development.

Atmosphere Control International
In 2012, ACI conducted significant business in the UK, France,
Spain and Japan contributing to the overall revenues post
acquisition of £7.5m, which on a pro forma basis(2) were
£9.7m. Due to the nature of the defence sector, long term
contract revenues can fluctuate on an annual basis. The
segment operating profit of ACI was £1.1m
The adjusted EBITDA contribution from ACI was £1.7m
which equated to £2.0m on a pro forma basis(2) in line with
acquisition expectations.
Significant programme milestones were achieved:
• Delivery of the final two CO2 removal Units to Navantia
for the Spanish S-80 submarine programme
• Delivery of the First oxygen generator to DCNS for the
French Barracuda submarine programme

Developing people and processes

• Sea Trials of the first COGS units (3rd generation oxygen
production system) for the UK MoD

Following the acquisition, we reviewed structures and
business processes to strengthen local leadership and
allow them to function independently within the Group
strategy.

Domestically the Company has seen the start of life
extension work on its equipment for Trafalgar submarines
with two Lifex programmes being completed.

We have developed existing staff and added external talent
to produce a blended team. Most notably, we recruited
Melanie Rigby from a global compressor manufacturer to
become Managing Director of CET. Below each MD, we have
focused on developing the existing local leadership teams.
We seek to develop youth and talent across the Group
and are encouraged by the progress of our apprenticeship
schemes with the addition of an Electrical Technician
Apprentice at ACI, bringing the group-wide total to six,
representing 7% of the overall engineering workforce.
We have also continued our commitment to improving
business processes and best practices. The formation of
a cross-Group team achieved successful accreditation of
CET under ISO9001.

Overseas, ACI has continued to expand its business with
further orders for a CO2 removal system for a non-European
navy and a second order from DCNS for two further O2
production systems for the French Barracuda programme.
These additional orders strengthened the long term order
book to assure future activity levels at the Portsmouth plant.
The Board has approved an R&D investment to enhance
the CO2 scrubbing technology to meet stricter future
requirements and maintain ACIs leading position in this field.
Further discussions continue with two other non-European
defence forces on future projects.
Corac Energy Technologies
Revenues of £0.2m (2011: £0.3m) for CET currently
represent recognition of partner contribution to long term
development projects. CET has continued to invest in the
R&D aspects of these projects with £3.2m of R&D
expenditure (2011: £3.4m) and has achieved significant
progress in maturing the core technologies, stimulating
interest from major partners for additional multi-million
pound projects. Growth of the order book reflects early
success of this activity, whilst some are subject to
prolonged startup processes and will launch in 2013.
The resulting adjusted EBITDA loss of £4.7m (2011:
£4.2m) was lower than anticipated for the year linked to
re-scheduling of individual partner development projects.
The segment operating loss for CET was £5.1m.
The new Technology Centre at Slough has proved its
value very quickly. Enhanced technical, meeting and staff
facilities allow more effective presentations to prospective
partners. Demonstration of functioning technology has led
directly to funded engineering studies with major partners
with much shorter business development cycles.

www.corac.co.uk
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Significant achievements included:
• A long term development and product licensing
agreement with a global manufacturer in a new
turbomachinery application. Partner investment of
£0.8m will lead to a five year exploitation agreement.
• Agreement with major corporate partners in the UK and
United States to develop an electricity generation system
using waste energy in the gas transmission network.
• The first integrated DGC system successfully completed
a test programme at the Spadeadam facility in Cumbria.
The tests represented the conditions that will be faced in
the field deployment.
• The Board committed to continued investment in the
CET business, with a focus on design for performance
and reliability that adds value for global customers.
CET will pursue a balanced strategy with continuing
investment in technology programmes to prove the maturity
and capability of intellectual property whilst working with
partners to produce innovative systems based on the core
technologies.
Hunt Graham
The fabrication plant near Manchester and on-site activities
on customer plants has generated revenues of £7.6m,
adjusted EBITDA of £0.6m and segment operating profit
of £0.6m in the period post acquisition. Both measures are
in line with acquisition baseline expectations. Due to the

www.corac.co.uk

timing of contract completions HG broke even in the first
quarter giving an adjusted adjusted EBITDA on a pro-forma
basis(2) of £0.6m, and revenue on a pro forma basis(2) of
£9.2m.
During 2012 the team achieved:
• Completion of a long term, high volume contract for a
global oil and gas major
• Increased market share to supply to 80% of the UK
Dryer manufacturers, a key market for the Extended
Surface business line
• Supported an intense refurbishment programme at one
of the largest refineries in the UK - during a 28 day
programme window HG were able to retube, hydrotest
and re-commission 21 heat exchangers in 25 days.
The high volume contract was especially significant as it
demonstrated Hunt Graham’s specialist technical capability.
It showed HG’s ability to work with advanced materials
using new automatic welding production technology. This
technique is the result of significant investment in 2011 that
was commissioned during 2012. 18 units between 14 and
30 tons each were delivered in a mixture of regular carbon
steel and high strength stainless steel.
Sales and marketing activity has continued in Germany,
United States and Turkey together with increasing activities
with key accounts in oil and gas and chemical processing.
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Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors

Phil Cartmell
Executive Chairman

Rohan Courtney OBE
Non-Executive Director

Phil Cartmell was appointed to the Board in September
2009. He has had a highly active career in business, having
formerly been Chief Executive of Vega Group plc between
2001 and 2008, where he grew the company into a leading
European aerospace and defence business. In February
2008 Vega Group was acquired by Italian multi-national,
Finmeccanica, for a substantial premium. Phil has served
as a Non-Executive Director and adviser for a number of
companies including Alterian plc a leading provider of
Global Information Management solutions, where he was
Non-Executive Chairman until its acquisition by SDL plc
in January 2012. He is currently a Non-Executive Director
of CSF Group plc (Malaysia) and Rangers International
Football Club plc.

Rohan Courtney was appointed to the Board in April 2010
and chairs the Remuneration Committee. He was a career
banker for 27 years including 8 years as Chief Executive in
Europe of State Bank of New South Wales. He cofounded
UCG Association where he is Chairman of Trustees, is
Executive Chairman of Clean Coal Limited and has been
involved in energy for most of his career. Rohan has served
on a number of public company boards and was a nonexecutive director of Tullow Oil plc, one of Europe’s largest
Independent Oil and Gas companies, from 1993 to 2007
and Senior Independent Director from 2000.

Mark Crawford
Chief Financial Officer
Mark Crawford was appointed to the Board in November
2009. Prior to joining Corac Mark worked in a number of
commercial roles, the last of which was as a Director with
private equity backed Gondola, having previously gained
international experience with PepsiCo, Inc. Mark started
his career with Glaxo Pharmaceuticals UK Limited in
various strategic planning and financial roles and where he
gained his accountancy qualification with the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants.

www.corac.co.uk

Richard King
Non-Executive Director
Richard King was appointed to the Board in February
2011 and chairs the Audit Committee. Richard spent 35
years with Ernst & Young LLP, becoming Managing Partner
of UK & Ireland and a member of both the EMEIA Board
and Global management group. Richard is a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and worked extensively with growing businesses. Richard
is Chairman of the Orchid Group, Non-Executive Director
of CSF Group plc and Allocate Software plc, is an advisory
partner at Rockpool Investments LLP and is on the
advisory board of Frogmore Property Group. He is also
Chair of Trustees for the Willow Foundation, a charitable
organisation for seriously ill children and adults.

Director’s Report

15 | Corac Group Plc Annual Report & Financial Statements 2012

The directors present their report and audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The Group’s principal business risks include:


Principal Activity
Corac is a UK based group of advanced technology and
engineering companies.
Principal activities of the group
comprise:
Atmosphere Control International provides air purification and
oxygen generation equipment for submarines together with air
handling and distribution systems;
Corac Energy Technology specialises in the research and
development of technologies in the field of gas compression
and the design and manufacture of high speed motors and
generators using proprietary permanent magnetic rotor and oilless bearings;





Hunt Graham is a leading manufacturer of heat exchange
equipment used in the cooling and heating of large scale
industrial processes.


Review of the Business and Future
Development
Significant developments and operating activities of the Group
as well as strategy, business environment and prospects are
discussed in detail in the Executive Chairman and Chief Financial
Officer Reports.
The Group considers its key performance indicators to be:








revenue;
adjusted EBITDA;
cash;
order book;
for R&D projects, the stage of completion of technical
development and associated physical assembly, progress
against timetable, milestones reached and associated
recognition of revenues; and
new innovations and applications of our technology.







The performance against these measures is discussed in the
Executive Chairman and Chief Financial Officer Reports.


Results and Dividends
A review of results is provided in the Executive Chairman and
Chief Financial Officer Reports. The directors do not recommend
the payment of a dividend and propose that the loss be added
to the deficit on reserves.

Research and Development

The principal financial risk is the management of cash during the
development phase for the Group including:


Total R&D expenditure in the year, including £0.2m cost of sales
within CET, was £3.2m (2011: £3.4m), all of which was charged to
the income statement in the year.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
In addition to financial risk management which is detailed in
note 26 to the financial statements, there are a number of risks
and uncertainties which could have a material impact on the
Group. Risks are reviewed by the Board and appropriate
processes and controls have been implemented in respect of
monitoring and control.
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the Group undertakes commercial contracts for customers
that are large and long term. The main operating risks
relate to contract delivery and performance including cost.
Internal procedures are designed to ensure that risks are
managed on a contract by contract basis so that contracts
are successfully delivered to customers on time, on budget
and to the highest quality specification.
the Group has a niche position in the Defence (naval) and
Oil and Gas markets supplying specialist equipment to a
relatively narrow customer base and the main external
market risks relate to the environmental factors within
these specialist sectors.
the R&D of new and innovative technologies and its
delivery within budgeted cost and timetable and with
adequate operating performance and reliability. The
Group has assembled a broad based team with experience
of managing, developing technologies and project
management and has secured appropriate external
resources;
the acceptance of the Group’s technology solutions by the
market, the continuing support of existing sales channels
and the anticipated level and rate of growth of future
revenues.
The Group continually monitors the market
place and works closely with development partners and
customers to advance the Group’s technologies;
the impact of general economic conditions and
uncertainties on potential partners’ plans for capital
expenditure and their ability and appetite to fund projects;
the impact of technological change and the potential of
competitors to develop alternative solutions. The Group
has registered patents covering key areas of its
technology, monitors relevant third party patents and has
developed significant know how;
the importance to the Group of retaining key employees in
the development of its technologies and execution of its
business plan. The Group seeks to avoid over dependence
upon specific employees and formally documents key
areas. The Group seeks to retain staff and encourage their
long term commitment by providing competitive
remuneration packages including company-wide share
options;
the ability of the Group to innovate, design, build, test and
prove technology applications in the marketplace. CET
relocated at the end of 2011 to its new world class
Technology Centre in order to meet the future specific
requirements to achieve this.



Liquidity risk. The Group seeks to manage financial risk
by ensuring that sufficient liquidity is available to meet
foreseeable needs and by investing cash assets safely and
profitably. The Group’s policy throughout the year has
been to achieve this objective through management’s dayto-day involvement in business decisions rather than
setting maximum or minimum liquidity ratios. Group
policies are aimed at maximising liquidity and return on
cash through the use of short and medium term bank
deposits;
Foreign exchange risk. The Group undertakes contracts
denominated in foreign currencies (principally Euro and US
dollar) leading to an exposure in exchange rate
movements for both sales and purchase transactions.
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Where they cannot be offset, forward exchange contracts
are utilised to minimise the risk.
Credit risk. The Group’s principal financial assets are cash
and trade receivables. The credit risk associated with cash
is managed by ensuring that counterparties have high
credit ratings assigned by international credit rating
agencies.
Interest rate risk. The Group’s policy throughout the year
has been to place funds on deposit directly with an
approved list of banks at varying maturities to match the
anticipated cash requirements of the Group; and

Directors and their Interests
The directors during the year were as follows:
Executive
P Cartmell
M S Crawford
Non-executive
R R Courtney OBE
R King
Directors’ interests in shares are shown in the Remuneration
report.

Capital Management
Capital consists of equity attributable to the equity holders of
the parent.
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
ensure that it maintains sufficient capital to support the ongoing expenditure requirements of the business with a view to
future commercial success from these activities in order to
maximise shareholder value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of working capital requirements. To adjust the
capital structure, the Group issues new shares. The Group
currently has no debt financing.

Related Party Transactions
These have been disclosed within note 28 to the accounts.

Auditor
Deloitte LLP has expressed willingness to continue in office. In
accordance with s489(4) of the Companies Act 2006 a resolution
to re-appoint Deloitte LLP will be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting.
This report was approved on behalf of the Board on 25 March
2013 and signed by order of the Board.

Creditor payment policy
The Group and Parent Company seek to agree payment terms
with their suppliers in advance of a transaction and will pay in
accordance with the agreed terms as long as the Group and
Parent Company are satisfied that the supplier has provided
goods and services in accordance with the order.
The Group and Parent Company's creditor payment period was
54 days (2011: 39 days).

Employee Involvement
The Group and Parent Company’s policy is to encourage
involvement at all levels, as it believes that this is essential for
the success of the business.

M J Webb
Company Secretary
25 March 2013

Directors' and Officers' Liability
Insurance
The Parent Company has purchased liability insurance covering
its directors and officers.
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The Parent Company gives regular briefings to a number of
analysts who cover the technology sector and actively encourages
more analysts to follow the Group.

Principles of Good Corporate
Governance
The Group is committed to high standards of corporate
governance.
It has adopted procedures to institute good
governance insofar as it is practical and appropriate for an
organisation of its size and nature, notwithstanding the fact that
companies that have securities traded on the Alternative
Investment Market of the London Stock Exchange (“AIM”) are not
required to comply with the Combined Code as appended to the
Listing Rules issued by the Financial Services Authority. Whilst
not required to comply with the Code, the Group has chosen to
give selected disclosures which they believe are necessary or
valuable to readers.
As the Group grows, it will regularly review the extent of its
corporate governance practices and procedures. At its current
stage of development, the Parent Company does not consider it
appropriate to be fully compliant with the Combined Code.

Application of Principles
Directors

During the year the Board consisted of two full time executive
directors and two non-executive directors. The Board met ten
times in the year and is provided with relevant information on
financial, business and corporate matters prior to meetings. As a
result of the transformation of the group, a search was initiated in
the last quarter of the year to find an additional non-executive
director to proactively address the growing needs of the Board to
support the larger group of companies from a business and
corporate governance perspective.
The Board is responsible for overall Group strategy, acquisition and
divestment policy, approval of the budget, approval of major
commercial contracts and capital expenditure projects and
consideration of significant operational and financial matters. The
Board monitors the exposure to key business risks and reviews the
progress of the Group towards achievement of its budgets and
forecasts. This is achieved by the close involvement of the
executive directors in the day-to-day running of the business and
by regular reports submitted to and considered at meetings of the
Board and subcommittees. The Board also considers employee
issues, key appointments and compliance with relevant legislation.
The Board has both an Audit and a Remuneration Committee.
The Board do not consider it necessary to constitute a separate
Nominations Committee and all members of the Board are
consulted on the potential appointment of a new director or a
company secretary.
All directors can receive appropriate training as necessary and are
able to take independent professional advice in relation to their
duties if necessary at the Parent Company’s expense. All directors
are subject to re-election every three years.

Relationship with shareholders

The Board attaches a high importance to maintaining good
relationships with all shareholders. The Parent Company holds
regular meetings with institutional shareholders to keep them
updated on the Group’s performance, strategy, management and
Board membership. In addition, the Board welcomes as many
shareholders as possible to attend the Annual General Meeting
and encourages an open discussion after the formal proceedings.

Accountability and audit
Directors' responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors
are required to prepare the Group and Parent Company financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union.
Under company law the directors must not approve the accounts
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the
company for that period. In preparing these financial statements
the directors are required to:







properly select and apply accounting policies;
present information, including accounting policies, in a
manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information;
provide additional disclosures when compliance with the
specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable
users to understand the impact of particular transactions,
other events and conditions on the entity's financial
position and financial performance; and
make an assessment of the company's ability to continue as
a going concern.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Group and Parent Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with
the Companies Act 2006.
They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.
The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of
the corporate and financial information included on the
company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
The directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge the
financial statements, prepared in accordance with IFRS, give a
true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and
profit or loss of the company and the undertakings included in
the consolidation taken as a whole; and the management report,
which is incorporated into the directors' report, includes a fair
review of the development and performance of the business and
the position of the Group taken as a whole, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces.
As far as each of the directors is aware, there is no relevant
information of which the Parent Company’s auditor is unaware.
Each director has taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant information and to establish that the Parent Company’s
auditor is aware of that information.

www.corac.co.uk
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Audit Committee
During the year the Audit Committee comprised two nonexecutive directors.
The Committee has specific terms of
Audit Committee
reference
which deal with its authority and duties. It meets at
least twice a year, with the Chief Financial Officer, Executive
During the year the Audit Committee comprised two nonChairman and the auditor attending by invitation.
The
executive directors.
The Committee has specific terms of
Committee reviews the independence and objectivity of the
reference which deal with its authority and duties. It meets at
auditor each year. The Committee overviews the adequacy of the
least twice a year, with the Chief Financial Officer, Executive
Group and Parent Company's internal controls, accounting
Chairman and the auditor attending by invitation.
The
policies and financial reporting and provides a forum through
Committee reviews the independence and objectivity of the
which the Company's external auditor reports to the nonauditor each year. The Committee overviews the adequacy of the
executive directors.
Group and Parent Company's internal controls, accounting
The
Board
hasfinancial
decided reporting
that the size
the Group
justify
policies
and
andofprovides
a does
forumnot
through
awhich
dedicated
auditexternal
function.auditor
This position
reviewed
the internal
Company's
reportswilltobethe
nonexecutive
directors.
as
the Group's
activities increase.
The Board has decided that the size of the Group does not justify
Going
Concern
a dedicated internal audit function. This position will be reviewed
as the Group's
activities
increase.
Discussion
of going
concern
is included within the accounting
policies described in note 2 of the Notes to the Financial
Going Concern
Statements.

The directors consider that the present system of internal control
is sufficient for the needs of the Group and Parent Company and
adequately addresses the risks to which the Group is perceived to
be exposed. The Board reviews the system twice per year.
The directors consider that the present system of internal control
is sufficient
needs of the Group and Parent Company and
On
behalf offor
thethe
Board
adequately addresses the risks to which the Group is perceived to
be exposed. The Board reviews the system twice per year.
On behalf of the Board

R W King
Chairman
Audit Committee
25 March 2013

R W King

Chairman
Audit Committee
25 March 2013

Discussion of going concern is included within the accounting
Internal
Control and Risk Management

policies described in note 2 of the Notes to the Financial
Statements.
The
Board has overall responsibility for ensuring that the Group
and Parent Company have processes to identify, evaluate and
Internal
Control
andtheRisk
Management
manage
key risks.
Following
acquisitions,
the nature of the
Group and Parent Company's business has changed from pure
The Board has overall responsibility for ensuring that the Group
R&D to a mix of commercial design, manufacturing and
and Parent Company have processes to identify, evaluate and
service/maintenance as well as on-going R&D. This calls for
manage key risks. Following the acquisitions, the nature of the
rigorous cost analysis and market risk assessment. The system is
Group and Parent Company's business has changed from pure
designed to manage and minimise risk of failure to achieve the
R&D to a mix of commercial design, manufacturing and
Parent Company's strategic objectives, and can only provide
service/maintenance as well as on-going R&D. This calls for
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material
rigorous cost analysis and market risk assessment. The system is
misstatement or loss.
designed to manage and minimise risk of failure to achieve the
Key
areas
of internal strategic
control are
listed below:
Parent
Company's
objectives,
and can only provide
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material

the review of contract progress against milestones and
misstatement or loss.
forecast expectations to ensure that contracts are delivered
on time
and oncontrol
budget.are listed below:
Key areas
of internal

regular review of the technical development programmes,

the review of contract progress against milestones and
the commercialisation of the Group’s technology and the
forecast expectations to ensure that contracts are delivered
financial performance of the Group in the context of the
on time and on budget.
Parent Company's business plan;

regular review of the technical development programmes,

an organisation structure with clear executive policies on
the commercialisation of the Group’s technology and the
recruitment, training, appraisals and project management;
financial performance of the Group in the context of the

an annual budget showing projected revenues, costs,
Parent Company's business plan;
funding requirements and operational targets. The Board is

an organisation structure with clear executive policies on
responsible for approving the budget and monitoring
recruitment, training, appraisals and project management;
performance against it; and

an annual budget showing projected revenues, costs,

a system to ensure the security of the Group’s intellectual
funding requirements and operational targets. The Board is
property.
responsible for approving the budget and monitoring
performance against it; and

a system to ensure the security of the Group’s intellectual
property.

www.corac.co.uk
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of Corac Group plc

Unaudited Information

Remuneration Committee
During the year the Remuneration Committee was made up of two non-executive directors. The Remuneration
Committee was chaired by Mr R R Courtney OBE and was attended by the Executive Chairman by invitation.
The Remuneration Committee sets and annually reviews the terms and conditions of employment of the
executive directors. The remuneration of non-executive directors is fixed by the Board as a whole. The
Remuneration Committee also monitors and reviews the Group-wide appraisal process and approves the
proposals from the executive directors for all employees' remuneration and option arrangements.

Remuneration Policy
The Parent Company's policy on executive directors' remuneration is to attract and retain high quality
executives by paying competitive remuneration packages relevant to each director's role, experience and the
external market. The packages include a basic salary, pension contributions and share options. Up to 2010,
options granted incorporated individual performance conditions. From 2010, all new options were granted
without performance conditions. No new options were granted to the executive directors during the year to 31
December 2012 (2011: nil).
An independent advisor has been commissioned to review the executive remuneration which will include
compensation, benefits and incentive plans.

Service Agreements
All Directors are appointed on 12 months rolling contracts and therefore have 12 month notice periods. NonExecutive Directors are appointed on three year contracts, with no notice period.

Audited Information

Directors' Emoluments
Basic salary
or fees
£000

Pension
contributions

Discretionary
Bonus
£000

Total
emoluments
2012
£000

Total
emoluments
2011
£000

£000

P Cartmell

250

18

250

518

214

M S Crawford

190

13

-

203

172

R R Courtney

35

-

-

35

34

R W King

32

-

-

32

29

-

-

-

-

310

507

31

250

788

759

J O Reed
(resigned 17 October 2011)

The discretionary bonus, unpaid at 31 December 2012, represents a provision recognising the Chairman’s role
in the transformation of the Group over the last 3 years.
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to the members of Corac Group plc

Remuneration Report

Directors' Share Options
The interests of the directors, who were in office at the end of the financial year, in options over the shares of
the Parent Company at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 were:
As at
31 Dec
2011
number

Exercised
in year

Lapsed
in year

Issued
in year
number

As at
31 Dec
2012
number

number

number

price (p)

Lapse date

P Cartmell

2,000,000

-

-

-

2,000,000

42.00

30 September 2019

P Cartmell

300,000

-

-

-

300,000

21.75

30 April 2020

P Cartmell

3,000,000

-

-

-

3,000,000

15.00

9 December 2020

M S Crawford

300,000

-

-

-

300,000

39.00

21 October 2019

M S Crawford

200,000

-

-

-

200,000

34.75

11 December 2019

M S Crawford

300,000

-

-

-

300,000

21.75

30 April 2020

M S Crawford

1,950,000

-

-

-

1,950,000

15.00

9 December 2020

R R Courtney OBE

250,000

-

-

-

250,000

15.00

9 December 2020

R W King

250,000

-

-

-

250,000

15.00

7 February 2021

Exercise

The closing mid-market price of the Parent Company’s shares as quoted on the Daily Official List as published
by the London Stock Exchange was 13.12p at 31 December 2012 and in the period 1 January 2012 to 31
December 2012 was a closing mid-market high of 16.62p per share and a low of 6.75p per share.

Directors' Interests
The directors who held office at the end of the financial year had the following beneficial interests in the
ordinary share capital of the Parent Company at 31 December 2012 and at 31 December 2011 and at the date
of this report:
Number held at

Number held at

31 December 2012

31 December 2011

Ordinary Shares of

Ordinary Shares of

10 pence each

10 pence each

1,187,920

711,920

M Crawford

135,489

123,024

R King

290,476

100,000

P Cartmell

On behalf of the Remuneration Committee

R R Courtney OBE
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
25 March 2013
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Independent Auditor’s
Report

to the members of Corac Group plc

We have audited the financial statements of Corac Group plc for
the year ended 31 December 2012 which comprise the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated and parent company statement of financial
position, the consolidated and parent company statement of
cash flows, the consolidated and parent company statements of
changes in equity and the related notes 1 to 29. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation
is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the
parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body,
in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the company’s members those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and
the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors
and Auditor
As explained more fully in the corporate governance report, the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Opinion on Financial Statements
In our opinion:








the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as
at 31 December 2012 and of the group’s loss for the year
then ended;
the group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union;
the parent company financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union and as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and
the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by
the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion;




the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited has been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006 that would have applied were the
company a quoted company; and
the information given in the Directors' Report for the
financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to
report by exception

Scope of the Audit of the Financial
Statements

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters
where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in
our opinion:

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This
includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the group’s and the parent company’s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors; and the overall
presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all
the financial and non-financial information in the annual report
to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements. If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications
for our report.







adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or
the parent company financial statements are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by
law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit.

Ian Smith

Senior Statutory Auditor
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Reading, UK
25 March 2013
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Consolidated Statement of
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive Income for the
for the year ended 31 December 2012
year ended 31 December 2012
Group
2012

2011

£000

£000

Note

Revenue

3

Cost of sales
Gross profit
Distribution costs

15,299

322

(11,845)

(322)

3,454

-

(172)

-

Research and development costs

(2,986)

(3,029)

Administrative expenses

(6,570)

(2,883)

Operating loss

4

(6,274)

(5,912)

Finance income

7

180

242

(6,094)

(5,670)

870

700

(5,224)

(4,970)

(1.8)

(2.0)

Loss before income tax
Income tax credit

8

Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to
shareholders
Loss per share expressed in pence per share
Basic and diluted loss per share

9

All results relate to continuing activities.
The notes on pages 27 to 53 form part of these financial statements.

Page 24 of 57
www.corac.co.uk

28 March 201328/03/2013 18:07:00

Corac Group plc Report and Financial Statements 2012
23 | Corac Group Plc Annual Report & Financial Statements 2012

Consolidated and Parent Company Statement of Consolidated
Financial Position
and Parent Company
Statement
of
Financial
Position for
as at 31 December 2012
the year ended 31 December 2012

Group
Note

Parent Company

2012

2011

2012

2011

£000

£000

£000

£000

ASSETS
Non current assets
Goodwill

10

4,953

-

-

-

Other intangible assets

11

11,631

-

-

-

Property, plant and equipment

12

1,828

1,858

1,590

1,858

Investments

13

-

-

10,910

-

Amounts owed by EBT

14

-

-

198

250

18,412

1,858

12,698

2,108

Current assets
Inventories

15

44

-

-

-

Trade and other receivables

18

3,339

1,410

1,266

1,410

700

700

700

700

Taxation recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

19

Total assets

6,651

15,332

4,714

15,297

10,734

17,442

6,680

17,407

29,146

19,300

19,378

19,515

(7,347)

(2,153)

(2,283)

(2,156)

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

20

Taxation payable

(52)

-

-

-

(7,399)

(2,153)

(2,283)

(2,156)

Non-current liabilities
Deferred taxation

22

(2,675)

-

-

-

Provisions

23

(712)

-

(150)

-

(3,387)

-

(150)

-

(10,786)

(2,153)

(2,433)

(2,156)

18,360

17,147

16,945

17,359

30,788

24,740

30,788

24,740

13,769

13,523

13,769

13,523

575

575

575

575

Own shares held by the EBT

(551)

(551)

-

-

Share-based payments reserve

1,026

883

932

789

(27,247)

(22,023)

(29,119)

(22,268)

18,360

17,147

16,945

17,359

Total liabilities
Net assets
EQUITY
Share capital

24

Share premium
Capital redemption reserve

Retained earnings
Total equity

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors and were signed on its behalf on 25 March 2013.
The notes on pages 27 to 53 form part of these financial statements.

P Cartmell
Executive Chairman Company number: 3152034
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year
for the year ended 31 December 2012
ended 31 December 2012

Group
Own
shares
held by
EBT
£000

Sharebased
payments
reserve
£000

Retained
earnings
£000

Total
£000

Share
capital
£000

Share
premium
£000

Capital
redemption
reserve
£000

24,740

13,523

575

(551)

566

(17,053)

21,800

-

-

-

-

317

-

317

Transactions with
owners

-

-

-

-

317

-

317

Total comprehensive
loss

-

-

-

-

-

(4,970)

(4,970)

24,740

13,523

575

(551)

883

(22,023)

17,147

6,048

246

-

-

-

-

6,294

-

-

-

-

143

-

143

6,048

246

-

-

143

-

6,437

-

-

-

-

-

(5,224)

(5,224)

30,788

13,769

575

(551)

1,026

(27,247)

18,360

Balance at
1 January 2011
IFRS 2 share option
charge

Balance at
31 December 2011
Issue of shares
IFRS 2 share option
charge
Transactions with
owners
Total comprehensive
loss
Balance at
31 December 2012

The notes on pages 27 to 53 to form part of these financial statements.
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Parent Company Statement of
Parent Company Statement of Changes in Equity
Changes in Equity for the year
for the year ended 31 December 2012
ended 31 December 2012

Parent Company
Share
Capital
£000

Share
premium
£000

Capital
redemption
reserve
£000

24,740

13,523

575

472

(17,303)

22,007

IFRS 2 share option charge

-

-

-

317

-

317

Transactions with owners

-

-

-

317

-

317

Total comprehensive loss

-

-

-

-

(4,965)

(4,965)

24,740

13,523

575

789

(22,268)

17,359

Issue of shares
IFRS 2 share option charge

6,048
-

246
-

-

143

-

6,294
143

Transactions with owners

6,048

246

-

143

-

6,437

Total comprehensive loss

-

-

-

-

(6,851)

(6,851)

30,788

13,769

575

932

(29,119)

16,945

Balance at
1 January 2011

Balance at
31 December 2011

Balance at
31 December 2012

Share-based
payments
reserve
£000

Retained
earnings
£000

Total
£000

The notes on pages 27 to 53 form part of these financial statements.
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and Parent Company
Consolidated and Parent Company Statement ofConsolidated
Cash Flows
Statement of Cash Flow for the year
for the year ended 31 December 2012
ended 31 December 2012

Group

Parent Company

2012

2011

2012

2011

£000

£000

£000

£000

(6,094)

(5,670)

(7,940)

(5,665)

Depreciation

478

24

418

24

Amortisation

605

-

-

-

(180)

(242)

(180)

(242)

143

317

143

317

-

-

52

-

95

-

-

-

2,455

(779)

502

(779)

Note
Operating activities
Loss before income tax
Adjustments for:

Finance income
Share-based payment expense
Increase in impairment on loan to
the EBT

14

Decrease in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in trade and
other receivables
(Decrease)/increase in trade and
other payables
Income tax received
Net cash used in operating
activities

(2,303)

523

277

524

(4,801)

(5,827)

(6,728)

(5,821)

731

710

731

710

(4,070)

(5,117)

(5,997)

(5,111)

180

242

180

242

(175)

(1,554)

(150)

(1,554)

(10,910)

-

(10,910)

-

(10,905)

(1,312)

(10,880)

(1,312)

Investing activities
Interest received
Purchase of property, plant and
equipment
Acquisition of subsidiary
undertakings

5

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares

24

6,350

-

6,350

-

Expenses of issue of shares

24

(56)

-

(56)

-

6,294

-

6,294

-

Net decrease in cash equivalents

(8,681)

(6,429)

(10,583)

(6,423)

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

15,332

21,761

15,297

21,720

6,651

15,332

4,714

15,297

Net cash from financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of year

The notes on pages 27 to 53 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
1.
of Operations
1.NatureNature
of Operations



Following the acquisition of ACI and HG in April 2012, the
principal activities of Corac Group plc and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) undertaken by the CET, ACI and HG businesses
comprise:

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 Investment entities
(amended)



IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements



IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities



IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement



IAS 27 (revised) Separate Financial Statements



IAS 28 (revised) Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures



IAS 32 (amended) Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities



The directors do not expect that the adoption of the
standards listed above will have a material impact on the
financial statements of the Group in future periods, except
as follows:



IFRS 7 (amended) will increase the disclosure requirements
where netting arrangements are in place for financial assets
and financial liabilities;

HG: Production of specialised heat exchange equipment used in
the cooling and heating of large scale industrial processes. HG
supply original equipment and spares, and perform
refurbishment and term support services to user communities in
oil & gas, chemical processing, power generation, foods and
pharmaceuticals from an integrated design and production
facility.



IFRS 9 will impact both the measurement and disclosures of
Financial Instruments;



IFRS 12 will impact the disclosure of interests the Group has
in other entities; and



IFRS 13 will impact the measurement of fair value for
certain assets and liabilities as well as the associated
disclosures.

Corac Group plc (the “Parent Company”) is the Group’s ultimate
parent company which is incorporated and domiciled in the
United Kingdom. The address of the Company is Technology
Centre, 683-685 Stirling Road, Slough, Berkshire, SL1 4ST. The
Parent Company’s shares are listed on AIM.



Beyond the information above, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of these
standards until a detailed review has been completed.

CET: Innovation and development of turbomachinery systems for
use in the oil and gas sector and a wide range of other
applications in industrial and utilities sectors. CET has active
development programmes for oil-less compression for waste heat
recovery and clean gas handling, and compact compression
systems to enhance natural gas production operating inside the
pipe both downhole and at the wellhead.
ACI: Specialised miniaturisation of chemical processes for rugged
environments.
ACI supplies air purification equipment,
oxygen/hydrogen generation and purification for submarines and
air handling and distribution systems in maritime and other
environments.

2.
Summary of Significant
2. Summary
of Significant
Accounting Policies
Accounting
Policies
2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated and Parent Company financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board as adopted by the European Union.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in pounds
sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention.
The measurement bases and principal
accounting policies of the Group and Parent Company are set out
below. The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those
of the previous financial year.
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the
following Standards and Interpretations which have not been
applied in these financial statements were in issue but not yet
effective (and in some cases had not yet been adopted by the
EU):


IFRS7(amended) Disclosures- Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities



Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2009 – 2011) Cycle



IFRS 9 Financial Instruments



IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
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Going concern
The Directors are satisfied that the Group has adequate resources
to continue in business for the foreseeable future, and
accordingly continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the accounts. In reaching this conclusion, the directors
have considered forecasts that cover a period of greater than
twelve months from the date of these accounts. The forecasts
take into account the Group’s existing cash resources, and include
consideration of certain downside scenarios, in particular in
relation to CET where there is inherently greater uncertainty as to
the future cashflows of that business. The Directors have also
considered the mitigating actions available to them, including the
ability of management to make certain reductions to the Group’s
discretionary expenditure if required.
2.2

Significant management judgements in
applying accounting policies

The significant management judgements in applying the
accounting policies of the Group and Parent Company that have
the most significant effect on the financial statements are set out
below.
(i)
Recognition of revenue
Revenue from the provision of commercial and R&D services is
recognised when the outcome of the transaction can be
estimated reliably using the criteria set out below in note 2.5
“Revenues”. As a consequence of the nature of these services,
this requires the exercise of judgement, estimates and
assumptions which are subject to uncertainty. The estimation
uncertainty with respect to revenues from services is set out
below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(ii)
Capitalisation of development costs
Development costs are capitalised when all of the conditions set
out below in note 2.7 “Research and development” have been
met.
The Group’s management continually monitors whether the
recognition requirements for development costs have been met
by any expenditure. The Group and Parent Company have not
yet capitalised any development costs as the criteria set out in IAS
38, “Intangible Assets”, have not been met. R&D costs expensed
for the year ended 31 December 2012 (including those classified
as cost of sales within CET) were £3.2m (2011: £3.4m).
(iii)
Deferred tax assets
The assessment of the probability of future taxable income
against which brought forward losses can be utilised is based on
the Group and Parent Company’s latest budget forecast, which is
adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and
specific limits to the use of any unused tax loss or credit. If a
positive forecast of taxable income indicates the probable use of
a loss, especially when it can be used without time limit, a
corresponding deferred tax asset is recognised in full.
2.3

Estimation uncertainty

When preparing the financial statements management
undertakes a number of judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses based on historical experience and other
factors considered reasonable at the time. Actual outcomes are
likely to differ from the estimates made by management and
actual results will seldom equal projected results.
Information about significant judgements, estimates and
assumptions which have the most significant effect on the
recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses are discussed below.
(i)
Recognition of revenue
The revenue recognised from commercial and R&D services
reflects management’s best estimate of the contract’s outcome
and stage of completion. The Group’s management addresses
the contracts monthly, including the costs to completion which
are subject to significant estimation uncertainty.
(ii)
R&D Tax Credits
The definition of “qualifying” R&D expenditure for the purposes
of R&D Tax Credits requires the exercise of judgement, estimates
and assumptions which are subject to uncertainty.
Qualifying R&D expenditure is defined by guidelines from the
Department for Business Enterprise and Regulatory Reform which
are subject to interpretations by HM Revenue & Customs.
R&D Tax Credits work by allowing companies to deduct up to
175% of qualifying expenditure on R&D activities when
calculating profit for tax purposes. Companies meeting strict and
specific criteria may, in certain circumstances, surrender this tax
relief to claim payable tax credits in cash from the HM Revenue &
Customs.
The Group and Parent Company have recognised an R&D Tax
Credit of £0.7m (2011: £0.7m) in respect of the year ended 31

December 2012 which is subject to submission to and acceptance
by HM Revenue & Customs.
(iii)
Share-based payments
The calculation of the share-based payments expense utilises
assumptions and estimates (e.g. share volatility, future exercise
rates) which may differ from actual results. Details of the
accounting policy are set out in note 2.16(i).
(iv)
Impairment of goodwill
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate present value.
2.4

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and all entities controlled by the
company (its subsidiaries) and the Corac Employee Benefit Trust
(see note 25) made up to 31 December each year.
The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition or up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring the accounting policies used in to line with those used
by the group. All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
Subsidiary undertakings are entities over which the Group has the
power to control the financial and operating policies so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. The Group obtains and
exercises control through voting rights.
The Corac Employee Benefit Trust, which is managed by an
independent trustee, is an employee share scheme established
for the benefit of and as an incentive for the employees of the
Group.
Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
subsidiaries are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Amounts reported in the financial statements
of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group.
The Parent Company has taken advantage of the exemption
available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has
not presented its profit and loss account. The Parent Company’s
result for the year was a loss of £6.9m (2011: £5.0m).
2.5

Revenues

Revenue is measured by reference to the fair value of
consideration received or receivable by the Group for goods
supplied and services provided, excluding VAT and trade
discounts. Revenue is recognised upon the performance of
services or transfer of risk to the customer.
(i)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the
following conditions are satisfied:
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the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;



the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;



the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;



it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the entity; and



the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

(ii)

Long term contracts

Where the outcome of a long term contract can be estimated
reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet
date. This is normally measured by the proportion that contract
costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated
total contract costs, except where this would not be
representative of the stage of completion. Variations in contract
work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent
that the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is
considered probable.
Where the outcome of a long term contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract
costs incurred where it is probable they will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which
they are incurred.
When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.
(iii)

Financing from R&D partners

When the outcome of a transaction involving prototype and
concept assessment, front end design, feasibility studies and R&D
work can be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised by
reference to the stage of completion at the balance sheet date,
taking
into
account
any
preferential
terms
post
commercialisation.
2.6

Cost of sales

For funded development projects within CET cost of sales is
deemed to represent that element of R&D spend financed by
development partners. As such this is set to equal revenues
recognised from R&D activity. Cost of sales within CET should be
viewed as part of total R&D costs.
For all other contracts (including all contracts within ACI and HG)
cost of sales represents the actual costs of materials, direct labour
and overheads incurred with reference to the stage of completion
of the contract at the balance sheet date.
2.7

Research and development

Expenditure on research (or the research phase of an internal
project) is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.
Development costs incurred on specific projects are capitalised
when all the following conditions are satisfied:


completion of the intangible asset is technically feasible so
that it will be available for use or sale;



the Group intends to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

www.corac.co.uk
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the Group has the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;



the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
benefits. Among other things, this requires that there is a
market for the output from the intangible asset or for the
intangible asset itself, or, if it is to be used internally, the
asset will be used in generating such benefits;



there are adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset, and



the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during
its development can be measured reliably.

Development costs not meeting the criteria for capitalisation are
expensed as incurred.
The cost of an internally generated intangible asset comprises all
directly attributable costs necessary to create, produce, and
prepare the asset to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Following initial recognition, the
related asset is amortised over the period of the expected future
sales with impairment reviews being carried out at least annually.
The asset is carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses.
The Group has not yet capitalised any development costs as the
criteria set out above have not been met.
2.8

Finance income

Finance income represents interest earned on cash deposits
which is allocated over the relevant period.
2.9

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.
Depreciation is calculated to write down the cost less estimated
residual value of all property, plant and equipment by equal
annual instalments on a straight line basis over their estimated
useful economic lives.
The rates generally applicable are:
Computer equipment
Office furniture and fittings
Plant and machinery

33% per annum
20% per annum
10% to 20% per annum

Short leasehold improvements are depreciated over the term of
the lease.
Management reviews the useful lives and residual values of all
depreciable assets at each reporting date. At 31 December 2012
management assesses that the useful lives represent the expected
utility of the assets to the Group and Parent Company.
Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or, where
shorter, over the term of the relevant lease. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the assets carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. To determine the recoverable
amount, management estimates future cash flows from the asset
based upon long term financial projections. The gain or loss
arising on the disposal or scrappage of an asset is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in income.
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2.10
2.10

Operatingleases
leases
Operating

Leaseswhere
wheresubstantially
substantiallyallallthe
therisks
risksand
andbenefits
benefitsofofownership
ownership
Leases
theasset
assetare
arenot
nottransferred
transferredtotothe
theGroup
Groupare
areclassified
classifiedasas
ofofthe
operatingleases
leasesand
andrentals
rentalspayable
payableare
arecharged
chargedtotothe
theincome
income
operating
statementon
ona astraight
straightline
linebasis
basisover
overthe
theterm
termofofthe
thelease.
lease.
statement
2.11 Finance
Financeleases
leasesand
andhire
hirepurchase
purchase
2.11
Assets held
held under
under finance
finance leases,
leases, which
which are
are leases
leases where
where
Assets
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andhire
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the
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future
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GroupororParent
ParentCompany
Companybecomes
becomesa aparty
partytotothe
thecontractual
contractual
Group
provisionsofofthe
thefinancial
financialinstrument.
instrument.
provisions
Financialassets
assetsare
arederecognised
derecognisedwhen
whenthe
thecontractual
contractualright
righttoto
Financial
thecash
cashflows
flowsfrom
fromthe
thefinancial
financialasset
assetexpire,
expire,ororwhen
whenthe
the
the
financial asset
asset and
and allall substantial
substantial risks
risks and
and rewards
rewards are
are
financial
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Financialassets
assetsand
andfinancial
financialliabilities
liabilitiesare
aremeasured
measuredinitially
initiallyatat
Financial
fairvalue
valueplus
plustransaction
transactioncosts,
costs,except
exceptfor
forfinancial
financialassets
assetsand
and
fair
financialliabilities
liabilitiescarried
carriedatatfair
fairvalue
valuethrough
throughprofit
profitororloss,
loss,
financial
whichare
aremeasured
measuredinitially
initiallyatatfair
fairvalue.
value.
which
Financial assets
assets and
and financial
financial liabilities
liabilities are
are measured
measured
Financial
subsequentlyasasdescribed
describedbelow.
below.
subsequently

commitments
commitments

2.12
2.12

transferred. AA financial
financial liability
liability isis derecognised
derecognised when
when it it isis
transferred.
extinguished,discharged,
discharged,cancelled
cancelledororexpires.
expires.
extinguished,

(i)(i)

Financialassets
assets
Financial

Forthe
thepurpose
purposeofofsubsequent
subsequentmeasurement,
measurement,financial
financialassets
assetsare
are
For
classifiedinto
intothe
thefollowing
followingcategories
categoriesupon
uponinitial
initialrecognition:
recognition:
classified


loansand
andreceivables;
receivables;
loans



financialassets
assetsatatfair
fairvalue
valuethrough
throughprofit
profitororloss;
loss;
financial

Thecategory
categorydetermines
determinessubsequent
subsequentmeasurement
measurementand
andwhether
whether
The
anyresulting
resultingincome
incomeand
andexpense
expenseisisrecognised
recognisedininprofit
profitororloss
loss
any
equity
ororequity
..

Allfinancial
financialassets
assetsexcept
exceptfor
forthose
thoseatatfair
fairvalue
valuethrough
throughprofit
profitoror
All
loss are
are subject
subject toto review
review for
for impairment
impairment atat least
least atat each
each
loss
reportingdate.
date. Financial
Financialassets
assetsare
areimpaired
impairedwhen
whenthere
thereisisany
any
reporting
objectiveevidence
evidencethat
thata afinancial
financialasset
assetorora agroup
groupofoffinancial
financial
objective
assetsisisimpaired.
impaired.Different
Differentcriteria
criteriatotodetermine
determineimpairment
impairmentare
are
assets
appliedfor
foreach
eachcategory
categoryofoffinancial
financialassets,
assets,which
whichare
aredescribed
described
applied
below.
below.
Allincome
incomeand
andexpenses
expensesrelating
relatingtotofinancial
financialassets
assetsthat
thatare
are
All
recognisedininprofit
profitororloss
lossare
arepresented
presentedwithin
within“Finance
“Financecosts”
costs”
recognised
“Financeincome”
income”except
exceptfor
forimpairment
impairmentofoftrade
tradereceivables
receivables
oror“Finance
whichisispresented
presentedwithin
within“Administrative
“Administrativeexpenses”.
expenses”.
which
TheGroup
Groupand
andParent
ParentCompany’s
Company’scash
cashand
andcash
cashequivalents
equivalentsfall
fall
The
intothis
thiscategory
categoryofoffinancial
financialinstruments.
instruments.
into
Loansand
andreceivables
receivablesare
arenon-derivative
non-derivativefinancial
financialassets
assetswith
with
Loans
fixedorordeterminable
determinablepayments
paymentsthat
thatare
arenot
notquoted
quotedininananactive
active
fixed
market. After
After initial
initial recognition
recognition these
these are
are recognised
recognised atat
market.
amortisedcost
costusing
usingthe
theeffective
effectiveinterest
interestrate
ratemethod,
method,less
less
amortised
provisionfor
forimpairment.
impairment. Discounting
Discountingisisomitted
omittedwhere
wherethe
the
provision
effectofofdiscounting
discountingisisimmaterial.
immaterial.
effect
Individuallysignificant
significantreceivables
receivablesare
areconsidered
consideredfor
forimpairment
impairment
Individually
whenthey
theyare
arepast
pastdue
dueororwhen
whenother
otherobjective
objectiveevidence
evidenceisis
when
receivedthat
thata aspecific
specificcounterparty
counterpartywill
willdefault.
default. Impairment
Impairmentofof
received
tradereceivables
receivablesare
arepresented
presentedwithin
within“Administrative
“Administrativeexpenses”.
expenses”.
trade
(ii)(ii)

Financialliabilities
liabilities
Financial

TheGroup
Groupand
andParent
ParentCompany’s
Company’sfinancial
financialliabilities
liabilitiescomprise
comprise
The
tradeand
andother
otherpayables.
payables.
trade
Financialliabilities
liabilitiesare
aremeasured
measuredsubsequently
subsequentlyatatamortised
amortisedcost
cost
Financial
using the
the effective
effectiveinterest
interestrate
ratemethod
methodexcept
except for
for financial
financial
using
liabilitiesheld
heldfor
fortrading
tradingorordesignated
designatedatatfair
fairvalue
valuethrough
through
liabilities
profitororloss,
loss,that
thatare
arecarried
carriedsubsequently
subsequentlyatatfair
fairvalue
valuewith
withgains
gains
profit
lossesrecognised
recognisedininprofit
profitororloss.
loss. Discounting
Discountingisisomitted
omitted
ororlosses
wherethe
theeffect
effectofofdiscounting
discountingisisimmaterial.
immaterial.
where
2.15
2.15

Equity
Equity

Equitycomprises
comprisesthe
thefollowing:
following:
Equity
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“Share premium” which represents the excess over nominal
value of the fair value of consideration received for equity
shares, net of expenses of the share issue.



“Capital redemption reserve” which constitutes a non
distributable reserve which arose on the acquisition by the
Company of its own shares.



“Own shares held by Employee Benefit Trust” which
represents the costs of purchasing own shares held by the
Employee Benefit Trust.



“Share-based payment reserve" which represents equitysettled share-based employee remuneration until such
share options are exercised or lapse.



“Retained earnings” which represents retained profits and
losses.

2.16
(i)

Employee benefits
Defined Contribution Pension Scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme and a
stakeholder pension scheme for employees. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group. The
pension cost charged against profits represents the amounts
payable by the Group and is expensed as it becomes payable.
(ii)

Share-based payment

All equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair
value at the date of grant which is ultimately recognised as an
expense in the income statement with a corresponding credit to
reserves. Options are valued using a Black-Scholes model.
If vesting periods or other non-market vesting conditions apply,
the expense is allocated over the vesting period, based on the
number of share options expected to vest. This estimate takes
into account a number of factors including performance
conditions applying to the relevant options. Estimates are
subsequently revised if there is any indication that the number of
share options expected to vest differs from previous estimates.
Any cumulative adjustment prior to vesting is recognised in the
current period.
No adjustment is made to any expense recognised in prior
periods if share options ultimately exercised are different to that
estimated on vesting. Upon exercise of share options the
proceeds received net of attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital, and where appropriate share premium.
(iii)
Employee benefit trust
The assets and liabilities of the Employee Benefit Trust ("EBT")
have been included in the Group accounts. Any assets held by
the Employee Benefit Trust cease to be recognised on the Group
balance sheet when the assets vest unconditionally in identified
beneficiaries.
The costs of purchasing own shares held by the Employee Benefit
Trust are shown as a deduction against consolidated equity. The
proceeds from the sale of own shares held increase consolidated
equity. Neither the purchase nor sale of own shares leads to a
gain or loss being recognised in the Group income statement.
(iv)
Short-term employee benefit costs
The undiscounted amount of short-term benefits attributable to
services that have been rendered in the period are recognised as
an expense, unless specifically required or permitted within the
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scope of IFRS reporting to be included in the cost of an asset.
Any difference between the amount of cost recognised and cash
payments made is treated as a liability or prepayment as
appropriate.
2.17

Government grants

Government grants of a revenue nature are credited to the
income statement (as other operating income) on a case-by-case
basis over the periods necessary to match them with the related
costs which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic
basis. Grants are only recognised when there is a reasonable
assurance that any conditions have been met and that the grants
will be received.
2.18

Foreign currency translation

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in
pounds sterling, which is the functional currency of all group
entities.. Foreign currency transactions are translated into pounds
sterling using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions (spot exchange rates). Foreign currency gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the re-measurement of monetary items at year end
exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss.
2.19

Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration for each
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values (at the
date of exchange) of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed,
and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.
The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS
3(2008) are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date,
except that deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities are
recognised and measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income
Taxes.
If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see below), or
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the
amounts recognised as of that date.
The measurement period is the period from the date of
acquisition to the date the Group obtains complete information
about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition
date, and is subject to a maximum of one year.
2.20

Goodwill

Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognised as an
asset at the date that control is acquired (the acquisition date).
Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest (if any) in the entity over the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed.

28 March 201328/03/2013 18:07:00
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Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment at least
annually. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cashgenerating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested
for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all
estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in
marketing, selling and distribution.

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

2.21

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
excluding goodwill

Intangible assets other than goodwill that are acquired by the
Group are stated at cost by accumulated amortisation (see below)
and any impairment losses. At each balance sheet date, the
Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the
asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from
other assets, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. An intangible
asset with an indefinite useful life is tested for impairment at least
annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may
be impaired.

2.24

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
2.22

Amortisation

Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight
line basis over the estimated useful life of intangible assets other
than goodwill of 15 years.
2.23

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable,
direct labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred
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3.
Segmental Reporting
3. Segmental Reporting
Business segments
For management purposes, the Group is treated as three business units comprising:




Corac Energy Technologies – activities include the continued innovation, research & development and partner testing and proof of its
core technology in order to lead to the commercialisation of technology applications.
Atmosphere Control International – activities include the provision of air purification equipment for submarines including
oxygen/hydrogen generation and purification, air handling and distribution systems.
Hunt Graham – activities include the manufacture of heat exchange equipment used in the heating and cooling of large scale industrial
processes.

Group Central Team – team costs incurred to support the businesses are charged out to the operating companies leaving central
unallocated costs that relate to specifically by the Corac Group Plc operations.
The following table presents group revenue, profit and certain net asset information for each business segment.

2012

2011

£’000

£’000

220

322

Atmosphere Control International

7,496

-

Hunt Graham

7,583

-

15,299

322

(5,082)

(4,207)

1,053

-

578

-

(2,823)

(1,705)

Group

(6,274)

(5,912)

Loss from operations

(6,274)

(5,912)

Revenue
Corac Energy Technologies

Group
Segment Operating Result
Corac Energy Technologies
Atmosphere Control International
Hunt Graham
Central unallocated costs

4

Finance Income
Loss before income tax
Income tax credit
Loss after tax

180

242

(6,094)

(5,670)

870

700

(5,224)

(4,970)

6,112

17,147

10,254

-

Segment net assets / (liabilities)
Corac Energy Technologies
Atmosphere Control International
Hunt Graham
Group
Other liabilities
Cash
Total net assets
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2,244

-

18,610

17,147

(280)

-

30

-

18,360

17,147
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Geographical segments
The Group’s operations are solely in the United Kingdom although some of the Group’s revenues are to customers outside
the UK. All segment assets are located in the UK. The Group’s revenues from external customers are analysed into the
following geographical areas:
Geographical analysis - revenue
United Kingdom

12,541

Rest of European Union

-

857

63

10

229

1,073

-

Middle East

642

-

Rest of the World

176

30

15,299

322

North America
Asia

Total revenue

£’000

Atmosphere
Control
International
£’000

£’000

Central
unallocated
costs
£’000

(5,082)

1,053

578

(2,823)

(6,274)

418

600

65

-

1,083

(4,664)

1,653

643

(2,823)

(5,191)

Share based payments

-

-

-

143

143

Exceptional items

-

-

-

980

980

(4,664)

1,653

643

(1,700)

(4,068)

(4,207)

-

-

(1,705)

(5,912)

24

-

-

-

24

Corac Energy
Technologies

Hunt Graham

Group
£’000

2012
Segment operating result
Depreciation and amortisation
EBITDA1

Adjusted EBITDA3
2011
Segment operating result
Depreciation and amortisation
EBITDA1

(4,183)

-

-

(1,705)

(5,888)

Share based payments

-

-

-

317

317

Exceptional items

-

-

-

332

332

(4,183)

-

-

(1,056)

(5,239)

Adjusted EBITDA3
1

EBITDA is defined as operating profit adjusted to add back depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortisation of acquired
intangible assets.
3

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as operating profit adjusted to add back depreciation of property, plant and equipment, amortisation of
acquired intangible assets and any other acquisition related charges, share based payment charges and exceptional items. Exceptional items
are those items believed to be exceptional in nature by virtue of their size and or incidence, and in the current period comprise costs
associated with the acquisitions of ACI and HG on 5 April 2012 and the associated equity fundraising on 2 April 2012.

4

Central unallocated costs include exceptional items of £980,000 associated with the due diligence, advisor and broker fees relating to the
acquisition of Atmosphere Control International Limited and Hunt Graham Limited (2011: £332,000).
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4.
loss Loss
4.Operating
Operating
The Group operating loss for the year is stated after charging the following:
Group
2012

2011

£000

£000

6,241

2,862

Staff costs
Wages and salaries
Social security costs

718

300

Other pension costs

326

143

7,285

3,305

Amortisation of intangible assets

605

-

Depreciation of property, plant & equipment

478

24

Operating lease expense - rent

611

234

Loss on foreign exchange

50

3

980

332

53

26

Fees payable for statutory and regulatory services

10

5

Corporate finance services

95

189

Tax services

25

25

184

245

Exceptional items: costs associated with the Wellman acquisition
Auditor's remuneration
Audit fees
Fees payable for the audit of the Parent Company
and consolidated financial statements
Non-audit fees

Total auditor remuneration

Included in wages and salaries is a total expense of share-based payments of £143,000 (2011: £317,000), all of which arises from
transactions accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment transactions.
Exceptional items relate to costs associated with the due diligence, advisor and broker fees relating to the acquisition of Atmosphere
Control International Limited and Hunt Graham Limited as detailed in note 5.

Staff numbers
The average number of employees, including Directors, employed by the Group during the year and including employees of Atmosphere
Control International Limited and Hunt Graham Limited from 5 April 2012, was as follows:
Group
2012

2011

Number

Number

Engineering

87

28

Business Development

17

2

Administration

27

10

131

40

Pension costs
The Group operates a money purchase pension scheme and a group stakeholder pension scheme. The assets of these schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in separately administered funds. The pension cost charge represents contributions payable by the
Group to these funds and amounted to £326,000 (2011: £143,000). No contributions were prepaid or overdue at 31 December 2012 (2011:
£nil). The nature of the Group’s schemes is such that there is no possibility of a surplus or deficiency in funding arising from past service.
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5. Acquisition of subsidiaries
5.
Acquisition of subsidiaries

On 5 April 2012 the Group acquired control and ownership of 100% of the share capital of Atmosphere Control International Limtied
(formerly Wellman Defence Limited) and Hunt Graham Limited (formerly Wellman Hunt Graham Limited) for an aggregate consideration of
£10.91m, of which £10.75m was settled in cash on completion and £0.16m was settled in cash in July 2012. The Directors believe that the
acquisition will transform the Group from being a research and technology group into a technology-led industrial engineering group with
established commercial relationships and a track record of revenue and profit contribution. Costs in the year associated with the acquisition
were £980,000 in respect of due diligence, advisor and broker fees. These costs have been treated as exceptional in the statement of
comprehensive income.
ACI
Book
Fair value
value
£000
£000
Recognised amounts of identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed
Financial assets
Inventory
Property , plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets
Identifiable intangible assets
Financial liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Total identifiable assets
Goodwill arising on
consolidation
Total consideration

2,012
139
92
24
4,500
(6,164)
603

1,973
139
92
24
11,741
(6,274)
(2,700)
4,995

HG
Book
Fair value
value
£000
£000

2,320
176
124
30
(1,572)
1,078

2,263
176
124
495
(1,982)
(114)
962

Total
Book
Fair value
value
£000
£000

4,332
139
268
148
4,530
(7,736)
1,681

4,236
139
268
148
12,236
(8,256)
(2,814)
5,957
4,953
10,910

Satisfied by:
Cash
Deferred consideration
Total consideration transferred

10,750
160
10,910

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition
Cash consideration
Less: cash balances acquired

10,910
10,910

The differences between the book values and fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed relate to reassessment of contract
balances and accruals and the valuation of intangible assets.
The acquired intangibles relate to technical know-how, customer relationships and trade name in the acquired subsidiaries.
The goodwill of £4,953,000 arising from the acquisition consists of synergies arising from the acquisition, the acquirees assembled
workforce and anticipated future profits arising from access to new markets.. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for income
tax purposes.
Details of the revenue and profit of the acquired companies for the period from the date of acquisition to 31 December 2012 are given in
note 3.
If the acquisition of ACI and HG had been completed on the first day of the financial year, group revenues for the period would have been
£19.3m and group loss before tax would have been £6.3m
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6. Directors’ Emoluments
6.
Directors’ Emoluments
Key management of the Group are members of the Board of Directors. Key management personnel remuneration includes the following
expenses:
Group
2012

2011

£000

£000

757

545

Termination payments

-

181

Pension contributions

31

33

788

759

Emoluments

Two Directors (2011: three) accrued benefits under the Group pension schemes during the year. No Director exercised share options during
the year (2011: nil).
Remuneration of the highest paid Director included above is as follows:
Group

Emoluments

2012

2011

£000

£000

500

121

Termination payments

-

181

Pension contributions

18

8

518

310

7.
IncomeIncome
7.Finance
Finance
Group

Interest income on bank deposits
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2012

2011

£000

£000

180

242
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8.
8.Taxation
Taxation
Credit to consolidated income statement

Group
2012

2011

£000

£000

700

700

31

-

731

700

139

-

870

700

Corporation tax - R&D credit
Current year
Prior year under provision

Deferred tax

The tax credit for the period is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 24.5% (2011: 26.5%). The differences are
explained as follows:
Group
2012

2011

£000

£000

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation

6,094

5,670

Loss on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of
24.5% (2011: 26.5%)

1,493

1,501

Effect of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

(317)

(109)

Depreciation in excess of capital allowances

(67)

9

Share -based payments

(35)

(84)

R&D enhanced relief

714

716

Surrender of tax losses for R&D credit

(728)

(780)

Trading losses carried forward

(501)

(555)

135

-

6

2

139

-

31

-

870

700

Utilisation of losses brought forward
Other short term timing differences
Deferred taxation
Adjustment in respect of prior years
Tax credit for the year

At the balance sheet date the Group has approximately £15.1m (2011: £11.0m) of unrelieved tax losses for offset against future taxable
profit. A deferred tax asset of £0.1m has been recognised in respect of £0.5m (2011: £nil) of such losses (see note 18). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining £14.6m (2011: £11.0m) as it is not considered probable that there will be future
taxable profits available.
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9. Loss per Share
9.
Loss per Share
The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2012 is based upon a loss after tax of £5,224,000 (2011: £4,970,000)
and a weighted average number of shares of 291,007,168 (2011: 245,897,878). The weighted average number of shares has been reduced
by the weighted average number of shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust.
The issue of additional shares on exercise of employee share options would decrease the basic loss per share and there is therefore no
dilutive effect of employee share options.

10.
10.Goodwill
Goodwill
Total
£000
Cost and net book value
At 1 January 2012

-

Recognised on acquisition of subsidiaries

4,953

At 31 December 2012

4,953

Goodwill arose on the acquisition of Atmosphere Control International Limited (formerly Wellman Defence Limited) and Hunt Graham
Limited (formerly Wellman Hunt Graham Limited) on 5th April 2012. Details of the acquisition are given in note 5 to these accounts.
In accordance with the requirements of IAS 36, Impairment of Assets, goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash generating units, or groups
of cash generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combination that gave rise to the goodwill as
analysed in the table below:
Total
£000
Atmosphere Control International Limited

4,351

Hunt Graham Limited

602
4,953

The goodwill balance has been tested for annual impairment on the following basis:
The carrying values of goodwill have been assessed by reference to value in use.
Cash flows based on forecast information for the next financial year which has been approved by the Board and in the case of
recent acquisitions on detailed annual forecasts.
The key assumptions on which the impairment tests are based are a discount rate of 13.4%, a growth rate of 3% and the forecast
cash flows, pre-tax discount rates.
No impairments were identified as a result of this exercise.
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11.
intangible
assets assets
11.OtherOther
intangible

Technical
Know How
£000

Customer
relationships
£000

Trade name
£000

Total
£000

-

-

-

-

Acquisition of subsidiary

11,741

324

171

12,236

At 31 December 2012

11,741

324

171

12,236

Cost
At 1 January 2012

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2012

-

-

-

-

Charge for year

581

16

8

605

At 31 December 2012

581

16

8

605

At 31 December 2011

-

-

-

-

At 31 December 2012

11,160

308

163

11,631

Net book value

Intangible assets above arose on the acquisition of Atmosphere Control International Limited (formerly Wellman Defence Limited) and Hunt
Graham Limited (formerly Wellman Hunt Graham Limited) on 5th April 2012. Details of the acquisition are given in note 5 to these accounts.
Technical Know How is recognised as Atmosphere Control International Limited’s proprietary expertise and experience of atmosphere
management techniques in the defence environment.
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12.
Plant and
Equipment
12.Property,
Property,
Plant
and Equipment
Group
Short
leasehold
improvements

Computer
equipment

Office
furniture
& fittings

Plant &
Machinery

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Cost
At 1 January 2011

193

314

26

393

926

Additions

1,612

34

21

156

1,823

Disposals

(193)

-

(3)

-

(196)

At 31 December 2011

1,612

348

44

549

2,553

19

71

40

45

175

-

15

53

205

273

1,631

434

137

799

3,001

193

291

25

358

867

3

7

-

14

24

(193)

-

(3)

-

(196)

Additions
Acquisition of subsidiaries
At 31 December 2012
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2011
Charge for year
Disposals
At 31 December 2011

3

298

22

372

695

Charge for year

324

42

26

86

478

At 31 December 2012

327

340

48

458

1,173

-

23

1

35

59

At 31 December 2011

1,609

50

22

177

1,858

At 31 December 2012

1,304

94

89

341

1,828

Net book value
At 1 January 2011

The Group’s obligations under finance leases (see note 21) are secured by the lessors’ title to the leased assets, which have a carrying
amount of £59,000 (2011: £74,000).
Details of the acquisition of subsidiaries are given in note 5.
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Parent Company
Short
leasehold
improvements

Computer
equipment

Office
furniture
& fittings

Plant &
Machinery

Total

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

Cost
At 1 January 2011

193

314

26

393

926

Additions

1,612

34

21

156

1,823

Disposals

(193)

-

(3)

-

(196)

At 31 December 2011

1,612

348

44

549

2,553

19

60

38

33

150

1,631

408

82

582

2,703

193

291

25

358

867

Additions
At 31 December 2012
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2011
Charge for year

3

7

-

14

24

(193)

-

(3)

-

(196)

3

298

22

372

695

Charge for year

324

36

11

47

418

At 31 December 2012

327

334

33

419

1,113

-

23

1

35

59

At 31 December 2011

1,609

50

22

177

1,858

At 31 December 2012

1,304

74

49

163

1,590

Disposals
At 31 December 2011

Net book value
At 1 January 2011

The Group’s obligations under finance leases (see note 21) are secured by the lessors’ title to the leased assets, which have a carrying
amount of £59,000 (2011: £74,000).

Page 44 of 57
www.corac.co.uk

10 April 201310/04/2013 17:41:00

43 | Corac Group Plc Annual Report & Financial Statements 2012

Notes to the Financial Statements

13.
in Subsidiary
Undertakings
13.Investments
Investments
in Subsidiary
Undertakings
The Parent Company’s investments comprise interests in group undertakings, details of which are listed below. The Companies are wholly
owned and are incorporated in England and Wales.
Parent Company
2012

2011

£000

£000

Cost and Net Book Value
At 1 January 2012
Investment during year

10,910

-

At 31 December 2012

10,910

-

The investment during the year arose on the acquisition of the entire issued share capitals of Atmosphere Control International Limited
(formerly Wellman Defence Limited) and Hunt Graham Limited (formerly Wellman Hunt Graham Limited) on 5 th April 2012. Details of the
acquisitions are given in note 5 of these accounts

Name of undertaking

Atmosphere Control International Limited
2

Hunt Graham Limited
Compact Radial Compressors Limited
Corac Engineering Limited
Corac Energy Technologies Limited

1

Description of shares
held

Proportion of nominal
value of shares held by the
Parent Company

£1.00 ordinary shares

100%

1

£1.00 ordinary shares
£0.0001 ordinary shares
£1.00 ordinary shares
£1.00 ordinary shares

100%
100%
100%
100%

2

Principal
Activity

Dormant
Dormant
Dormant

3

1

Development, design and manufacture of equipment and systems in the fields of electrochemistry and in the absorption and treatment of
gaseous effluent

2

Design and manufacture of vacuum and heat transfer equipment

3.

Corac Energy Technologies Limited was incorporated on 15 May 2012 and commenced trading on 1 January 2013.

Page 45 of 57

www.corac.co.uk

28 March 201328/03/2013 18:07:00

Corac Group plc Report and Financial Statements 2012

44 | Corac Group Plc Annual Report & Financial Statements 2012

Notes to the Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
14. Amounts owed by Employee Benefit Trust
14.
Amounts owed by Employee Benefit Trust
Group

Parent Company

2012

2011

2012

2011

£000

£000

£000

£000

Amounts owed by EBT

-

-

600

600

Less: impairment

-

-

(402)

(350)

-

-

198

250

The loan to the Employee Benefit Trust is interest free and unsecured. Details of the Employee Benefit Trust are provided in note 25. The
loan is repayable under the following circumstances:
(i)
(ii)

From receipt of consideration from the sale of shares in the Parent Company purchased with the loan; and
Following any lapses in options granted by the Employee Benefit Trust over shares in the Parent Company, the Parent
Company can force the sale of shares to repay the loan.

The loan is not expected to be fully repaid within the next 12 months.
Under the terms of the loan facility, should the Employee Benefit Trust be unable to repay the loan following disposal of all its assets then
the loan shall be considered waived.
The impairment against the loan is a result of movements in the open market value of the shares in the Parent Company held by the
Employee Benefit Trust which could affect its ability to fund future loan repayments.

15. Inventories
15.
Inventories
Group

Raw materials

Parent Company

2012

2011

2012

2011

£000

£000

£000

£000

44

-

-

-

16. Long Term Contracts
16.
Long Term Contracts
The carrying amounts presented in the Consolidated and Parent Company balance sheets for long term contracts relate to the following
categories of assets and liabilities:
2012

2011

£000

£000

(2,062)

(256)

-

-

(2,062)

(256)

Contracts in progress at the balance sheet date:
Amounts due from contract customers included in trade and other receivables
Amounts due to contract customers included in trade and other payables

Contract costs incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses to date
Less progress billings
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17. Financial Assets and Liabilities
17.
Financial Assets and Liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the Consolidated and Parent Company balance sheets relate to the following categories of assets and
liabilities:
Group

Parent Company

2012

2011

2012

2011

£000

£000

£000

£000

250

Financial assets
Amounts owed by EBT (note 14)

-

-

198

Trade and other receivables (note 18)

2,584

351

1,015

351

Cash and cash equivalents (note 19)

6,651

15,332

4,714

15,297

9,235

15,683

5,927

15,898

2,134

587

361

587

Amount owed to subsidiary undertakings

12
-

12
-

12
10

12
5

Non-current obligations under hire purchase contracts
(see note 21)

37

47

37

47

2,183

646

420

651

Financial liabilities - current
Trade payables
Current obligation under hire purchase contracts (note 21)

See note 2.14 for a description of the accounting policies for each category of financial instruments. The fair values are presented in the
related notes. A description of the Group’s risk management and objectives for financial instruments is given in note 26.
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18.
Trade and Other Receivables
18. Trade and Other Receivables

Notes to the Financial Statements

Group

Parent Company

2012

2011

2012

2011

£000

£000

£000

£000

113

Financial assets:
Trade receivables

2,584

113

113

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings

-

-

902

-

Other receivables

-

238

-

238

2,584

351

1,015

351

Prepayments and accrued income

563

598

207

598

Deferred tax

148

-

-

-

Other taxes

44

461

44

461

3,339

1,410

1,266

1,410

Non-financial assets:

The carrying value of trade and other receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to their short term nature. A
provision of £272,000 for impairments of receivables was assumed on acquisition of Hunt Graham Limited. on 5th April 2012 (see note 5)
(2011: £nil). The Group has made no other allowance for doubtful receivables because there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The average age of these receivables is 81 days (2011: 24 days). The ageing of past
due but not impaired receivables is:
Group

Parent Company

2012

2011

2012

2011

£000

£000

£000

£000

0-30 days

391

-

-

-

31-60 days

687

-

-

-

61-90 days

-

-

-

-

199

-

-

-

1,277

-

-

-

>90 days

In 2012 a rent deposit of £55,000 (2011:£55,000) and contract retentions of £59,000 (2011:£nil) due after more than one year are included
within Prepayments and accrued income.
Trade receivables disclosed above are classified as loans and receivables and are therefore measured at amortised cost. Credit terms are
negotiated as part of each individual contract. No interest is charged on the receivables from the date of the invoice. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over any of its trade receivables nor does it have a legal right of offset against any
amounts owed by the Group to the counterparty.
Group

Deferred tax comprises

Accelerated capital allowances and other temporary differences
Tax losses carried forward

2012

2011

£000

£000

24

-

124

-

148

-

The deferred tax asset is expected to be recovered in more than one year.
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19. CashCash
and Cash
Equivalents
and Cash
Equivalents
19.
Group

Cash and cash equivalents

Parent Company

2012

2011

2012

2011

£000

£000

£000

£000

6,651

15,332

4,714

15,297

The funds were placed on deposit as follows:
Group

Cash at bank and in hand
Short term deposits

Parent Company

Interest
Rate type

2012

2011

2012

2011

£000

£000

£000

£000

Floating

6,651

4,832

4,714

4,797

Fixed

-

10,500

-

10,500

6,651

15,332

4,714

15,297

20. Trade
and Other
20.
Trade
and Payables
Other Payables
Group

Parent Company

2012

2011

2012

2011

£000

£000

£000

£000

2,134
12

587
12

361
12

587
12

-

-

10

5

37

47

37

47

2,183

646

420

651

Accrued expenses

2,289

1,048

1,533

1,046

Amounts due to construction contract customers
(see note 16)
Other taxes and social security

2,062

256

214

256

813

203

116

203

7,347

2,153

2,283

2,156

Financial liabilities:
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade payables
Obligations under hire purchase contracts
Amount owed to subsidiary undertakings
Amounts falling due after one year
Obligations under hire purchase contracts

Non-financial liabilities:

The carrying values of trade and other payables are considered to be a reasonable estimate of their fair values.
Trade creditors and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period
taken for trade purchases is 54 days. For most suppliers no interest is charged on the trade payables. The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms.
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21.
under Finance
Leases and
Hire Purchase
Contracts
21.Obligations
Obligations
under Finance
Leases
and Hire
Purchase Contracts
The company uses finance leases and hire purchase contracts to acquire plant and machinery. Future minimum lease payments under hire
purchase contracts are as follows:
Group

Parent Company

2012

2011

2012

2011

£000

£000

£000

£000

14
41

14
54

14
41

14
54

55

68

55

68

(6)

(9)

(6)

(9)

49

59

49

59

Not later than one year

12

12

12

12

After one year but not more than five years

37

47

37

47

49

59

49

59

Future minimum payments due:
Not later than one year
After one year but not more than five years

Less finance charges allocated to future periods
Present value of minimum lease payments

The present value of minimum lease payments is
analysed as follows:

The average lease term is 5 years. For the year ended 31 December 2012, the average effective borrowing rate was 5.9% (2011: 5.9%).
Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments.
All lease obligations are denominated in sterling. The group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ rights over the
leased assets as disclosed in note 12.
The fair value of the group’s lease obligations is approximately equal to their carrying amount.

22.
Taxation
22.Deferred
Deferred
Taxation
The following deferrd tax liability arose in respect of intangible assets acquired in the ACI and HG acquisition (see note 5).
Group

Parent Company

2012

2011

2012

2011

£000

£000

£000

£000

Deferred tax liability arising in the year

2,814

-

-

-

Credit to Comprehensive Income

(139)

-

-

-

2,675

-

-

-
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23.
Provisions
23. Provisions
Group

Parent

Warranty

Property

Total

Property

£000

£000

£000

£000

At 1 January 2012

-

-

-

-

Reclassification from accruals

-

150

150

150

On acquisition of subsidiaries

382

180

562

-

At 31 December 2012

382

330

712

150

The warranty provision recognises future claims for rectification and repair to goods sold and remaining under a contractual warranty
period, the majority of which are expected to be incurred in the next one to three years.
The property provision recognises future costs of building dilapidations arising under the terms of property leases.

24.
Share Capital
24. Share Capital

Parent Company
2012

2011

£000

£000

30,788

24,740

Allotted, called up and fully paid
307,880,416 (2011: 247,404,225 ) ordinary shares of 10p each

At 1 January
Issued during year
At 31 December

Number

Number

247,404,225

247,404,225

60,476,191

-

307,880,416

247,404,225

In accordance with the Articles of Association for the Company adopted on 19 May 2011, the share capital of the Company consists of an
unlimited number of ordinary shares of nominal value 10 pence each.
All shares are equally eligible to receive dividends and the repayment of capital and represent one vote at the shareholders’ meeting of
Corac Group plc. None of the Parent Company shares are held by any company in the Group. The Employee Benefit Trust holds shares in
the Parent Company as set out in note 24.
On 2 April 2012 the company issued 60,476,191 new ordinary shares of 10p each at 10.50 pence per share. Expenses associated with the
issue of shares and associated acquisition of ACI and HG (see note 5) were £1,368,000 of which £332,000 was recognised in the income
statement to 31 December 2011, £56,000 was recognised in equity and £980,000 was recognised in the income statement in 2012. All these
shares were subsequently admitted for trading on AIM.

Options
The Group has two unapproved share option schemes and an Enterprise Management Incentive (EMI) scheme. Share options have been
granted by both the Parent Company and the Corac Employee Benefit Trust (note 24) under the rules of these schemes. The share options
granted by the Employee Benefit Trust have no dilutive effect on the Parent Company's share capital.
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Share
Capital (continued)
Share
Capital
Unapproved schemes
Number of options

Parent
Company

At 31 December 2011

EMI scheme

EBT

Parent
Company

Total
EBT

Parent
Company

EBT

Total

10,885,755

400,000

5,384,891

860,341

16,270,646

1,260,341

17,530,987

Lapsed during the year

-

(100,000)

(1,230,307)

(182,003)

(1,230,307)

(282,003)

(1,512,310)

Granted during the year

-

-

3,625,963

-

3,625,963

-

3,625,963

10,885,755

300,000

7,780,547

678,338

18,666,302

978,338

19,644,640

At 31 December 2012

The exercise of options issued prior to April 2010, is subject to the satisfaction of the applicable performance conditions. At 31 December
2012, performance conditions not satisfied relate to the market price of the ordinary shares of the Parent Company as quoted on AIM.
Generally, options will lapse on cessation of employment or ten years from issue.
The movement on the Group’s share option schemes is summarised in the table below.

2012

2011

weighted

weighted

2012

average

2011

average

number

exercise

number

exercise

of options

price (pence)

of options

price (pence)

As at 1 January 2012

17,530,987

24.8

16,774,087

25.8

Lapsed during the year

(1,512,310)

22.1

(371,713)

34.6

3,625,963

11.0

1,128,613

14.4

At 31 December 2012

19,644,640

22.4

17,530,987

24.8

Exercisable at 31 December 2012

12,599,783

27.3

9,075,458

30.5

Granted during the year

No share options were exercised during the year. The options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had exercise prices as shown in the
following table and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 7.3 years.
At 31 December 2012 options over ordinary 10p shares together with the fair value per option granted and the assumptions used in the
calculation of fair value for awards made after 7 November 2002, are set out in the table below.
The market price of the Parent Company's shares at 31 December 2012 was 13.12p and the range during the year was between 6.75p and
16.62p.
Expected volatility is a measure of the amount by which a share price is expected to fluctuate during a period. For options issued after
2009, expected volatility was based on the volatility of the Parent Company’s shares during the previous 12 months. For options issued in
earlier periods, the volatility of the Parent Company's share price was calculated as the average of annualised standard deviations of daily
continuously compounded returns on the Parent Company's stock, calculated over 1, 2 and 3 years back from the date of grant where
possible.
The risk-free rate is the yield to maturity on the date of grant of a UK Gilt Strip, with term to maturity equal to the expected life of the
option.
The group recognised total expenses of £143,000 and £261,000 related to equity-settled share-based payment transactions in 2012 and
2011 respectively
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Share Capital (continued)
Share Capital
Date of
grant

Option
price per
share
Pence

Number

Closing
share price
at grant
Pence

Notes to the Financial Statements

Exercise
price
Pence

Expected
volatility
%

Risk-free
interest rate
%

Fair value
per share
Pence

2003

83,334

*

34.00

34.00

34.00

42.82

4.78

15.05

2004

35,000

*

33.00

33.00

33.00

37.69

4.50

13.28

2005

15,002

*

31.25

32.25

31.25

38.54

4.20

13.36

2006

420,002

*

37.50

36.50

37.60

38.26

4.30

11.41

2007

463,336

36.00

36.00

36.00

35.44

5.35

7.20

2007

855,000

39.00

38.50

39.00

35.04

5.30

9.45

2007

30,000

48.50

49.50

48.50

35.54

5.51

14.75

2007

550,000

51.50

51.50

51.50

29.32

4.58

10.10

2007

470,000

53.67

52.00

53.67

29.32

4.58

7.99

2008

325,000

14.90

16.75

14.90

79.50

2.76

7.96

2008

315,000

14.90

16.75

14.90

79.50

2.76

7.96

2009

2,000,000

42.00

41.40

42.00

69.13

0.86

15.19

2009

300,000

39.00

35.75

39.00

69.13

1.04

12.34

2009

200,000

34.75

32.00

34.75

69.13

1.02

11.08

2010

100,000

25.25

24.52

25.25

67.61

1.27

8.78

2010

440,000

25.25

24.52

25.25

67.61

1.27

8.78

2010

1,200,000

21.75

22.00

21.75

50.63

1.20

6.31

2010

400,000

15.40

14.92

15.40

37.09

0.78

2.93

2010

6,705,000

15.00

14.80

15.00

37.43

0.80

3.04

2010

573,104

15.08

15.50

15.08

37.43

0.88

3.45

2011

250,000

14.15

14.25

14.15

40.71

1.32

3.35

2011

250,000

14.85

15.00

14.85

40.71

1.63

3.58

2011

250,000

15.00

15.00

15.00

40.71

1.63

3.52

2011

28,125

10.32

10.50

10.32

44.79

0.56

2.66

2012

1,050,237

11.83

11.75

11.83

36.28

0.45

2.34

2012

500,000

11.25

11.25

11.25

36.28

0.47

2.27

2012

1,518,000

10.00

9.50

10.00

36.28

0.51

1.73

2012

128,500

10.00

9.13

10.00

31.02

0.32

1.25

2012

190,000

13.67

14.25

13.67

42.23

0.28

3.53

*

*

19,644,640

* These options were issued by the Employee Benefit Trust.
All options expire 10 years after the date of grant.
The dividend yield of 0% in all cases reflects the absence of dividends and of a clear dividend policy statement at the relevant dates of
grant.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements

25.
BenefitBenefit
Trust Trust
25.Employee
Employee
On 8 November 2002 the Parent Company established the Corac Employee Benefit Trust, an employee benefit trust, as an employees' share
scheme for the benefit of and as an incentive for the employees of the Group. The Corac Employee Benefit Trust is managed by an
independent trustee.
At 31 December 2012 the Parent Company had loaned £600,000 (2011: £600,000) to the Corac Employee Benefit Trust. With this loan the
Trustee purchased shares in the Parent Company and, at 31 December 2012, the Corac Employee Benefit Trust held 1,506,347 (2011:
1,506,347) ordinary shares in Corac Group plc with a book cost of £643,310 (2011: £643,310) which had a market value of £197,633 (2011:
£177,000). As set out in note 2.17(ii), neither the purchase nor sale of shares in the Parent Company leads to a gain or loss being
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income but instead these are shown as movements on consolidated equity.
Options have been granted over 978,338 (2011: 1,260,341) shares to certain employees being: 83,334 at 34.0p per share until 11 December
2013, 35,000 at 33.0p per share until 15 December 2014, 15,002 at 31.25p per share until 28 December 2015, 420,002 at 37.5p per share
until 27 July 2016, 325,000 at 14.9p per share until 30 December 2018 and 100,000 at 25.25p per share until 23 June 2019. Options issued
prior to 2010 are subject to performance conditions. At 31 December 2012, performance conditions not satisfied relate to the market price
of the ordinary shares of the Parent Company as quoted on AIM.
The Parent Company intends to fund any shortfall should the Employee Benefit Trust need to purchase more shares to fulfil its obligations
to option holders.
Dividends on the shares owned by the Employee Benefit Trust, the purchase of which was funded by an interest free loan to the Employee
Benefit Trust from the Parent Company, are waived on the condition that the Trustee shall not be liable for any losses to the Employee
Benefit Trust as a result of the waiver.

26.
Management
Objectives
and Policies
26.RiskRisk
Management
Objectives
and Policies
Liquidity risk
Until the Group achieves cash flow breakeven from the sale of its products and services, it will seek to finance its operations by raising
equity financing on the AIM and investing the proceeds on a short term basis as its development proceeds. The Group seeks to manage
financial risk to ensure sufficient liquidity to meet foreseeable requirements until cash flow breakeven and to invest cash profitably and at
low risk.
The Group holds investments in bank deposits as a liquid resource to fund its operations. The Group’s strategy for managing cash is to
maximise interest income whilst ensuring availability to match the profile of the Group’s expenditure. Liquidity is further managed by tight
controls over expenditure.

Credit risk
The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from holding cash and cash equivalents. The Group places funds on deposit directly with banks.
Group credit policy limits deposits to an approved list of specific banks which is compiled taking into account various factors including
credit ratings.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is also attributable to its trade receivables which, as set out in note 13, at 31 December 2012 were
£2,584,000 (2011: £113,000). The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the
Group’s management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current economic environment. There are no doubtful
receivables at the end of 2012.

Interest rate risk
A further risk arising from the Group’s financial instruments is interest rate risk. The Directors consider the principal element of risk directly
arising from changes in interest rates relates to the level of interest income earned on bank deposits. Funds are invested to maintain a
balance between accessibility of funds and competitive rates of return whilst investing funds safely.

Corac
Group
plcrate
Report
and Financial
2012 and during the year were placed with banks for between three and
The Group’s
fixed
investments
in pounds Statements
were held in sterling
eighteen months and earned interest at between 3.00% and 0.64%. Floating rate cash deposits earned interest based upon the relevant
LIBOR equivalents and earned interest at 0.75%. The weighted average interest rate received on all funds deposited during the year was
1.26 %. A change in the rate of 1% in interest rates would have impacted the finance income by £192,000 in the year ended 31 December
2012 (2011: £192,000).

Notes to the Financial Statements

It is, andManagement
has been throughoutObjectives
the period underand
review,Policies
the Group’s(continued)
policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.
Risk

Foreign currency risk
The Group undertakes contracts denominated in foreign currencies (principally Euro and US dollar) leading to an exposure in exchange rate
movements for both sales and purchase transactions. Where they cannot be offset, forward exchange contracts are utilised to minimise the
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27.

Financial Commitments under Operating Leases

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
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tocontracts
the Financial
Statements
movements for both sales and purchase transactions. Where they cannot be offset, forwardNotes
exchange
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to minimise the
risk.

27.
Commitments
under Operating
Leases
27.Financial
Financial
Commitments
under Operating
Leases
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
Groups

Group and Parent Company

2012

2011

2012

2011

£000

£000

£000

£000

706

18

221

18

From one to five years

2,180

811

590

811

In more than five years

4,555

-

-

-

7,441

829

811

829

Within one year

121

7

49

7

From one year to five years

131

10

60

10

252

17

109

17

7,693

846

920

846

Land and buildings
Within one year

Office equipment and motor vehicles

No Company in the Group sub-leases any of their leased premises.
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group for all of its properties. Leases are negotiated for periods of between 10
and 25 years and rentals are fixed for an average of 5 years.
At 31 December 2012 the Group had no capital commitments (2011: £nil).

28.
Liabilities
28.Contingent
Contingent
Liabilities
As part of the Groups long term contract trading activities, £447,000 of performance and warranty bonds (2011: £nil) have been issued to
customers. No liability is expected to arise and no provision is made in the accounts.

29.
Party Party
Transactions
29.Related
Related
Transactions
The following transaction took place between both the Group and Parent Company and other entities with common directorship or
controlled by a related party. During the year to 31 December 2011, fees of £61,000 were invoiced by Clean Coal Ltd, a company of which
Mr R R Courtney OBE is a Director in respect of a proposed project. The project was subsequently aborted and a credit note to the sum of
£61,000 issued. An amount of £61,000 was outstanding at 31 December 2011. At 31 December 2012 the balance of £61,000 remains
outstanding and has been provided for in full in these accounts. The Director concerned did not benefit financially from the arrangement
and was not involved in agreeing the terms which were negotiated on an arms-length basis.
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